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To the Members of City Council 
City of York, Pennsylvania 

Independent Auditors' Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of York, Pennsylvania as of December 31, 2011, and for the year then ended, 
which collectively comprise the City of York, Pennsylvania's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of York, Pennsylvania's management. 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as 

. evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of York, 
Pennsylvania as of December 31, 2011 , and the respective changes in financial position, and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) , 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages i through xx, budgetary comparison information on pages 78 and 79, 
schedules of historical pension information on pages 80 through 82 and schedule of historical other post­
employment benefits information on page 83 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements, We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 



To the Members of City Council 
City of York, Pennsylvania 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of York, Pennsylvania's basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements 
and budgetary comparison information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements and budgetary comparison 
information are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Oaks, Pennsylvania 
May 28,2013 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 20 II 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of York's (City) financial performance provides an overview, 
perspective and analysis of the City's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2011. 
Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which begin with the Statement of 
Net Assets on page I. The discussion also focuses on the primary government and unless otherwise 
noted, component units are not included. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

• The assets of the City of York exceeded its liabilities by $64,698,901 (Net Assets). 

o Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, in the amount of $92,503,447, includes 
all capital assets including infrastructure. 

o Restricted net assets with external restrictions imposed by creditors or laws or 
regulations of other governments amounted to $14,803,261. 

o Unrestricted net assets, which are net assets not restricted for any particular purpose, 
were ($42,607,807). 

• Over 20 II, the City of York' s net assets increased by $1,195,592. The business-type activities 
net assets increased by $6,706,952 primarily due to capital grants and contributions 
$2,597,518, unrestricted investment earnings of $1,776,852, and transfers of $1,816,967. 
Governmental activities net assets decreased by $5,511,360 primarily due to the increase in 
other post-employment liability of $2,710, I 06, accretion of capital appreciation debt in the 
amount of $2,650,179, and depreciation expense of $3,821 ,592. 

• At December 31, 2011, the fund balances of the City of York's governmental funds were 
$(740,928). This was an increase of$312,847 from December 31,20 I O. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The City's financial report consists of several sections. Taken together, they provide a comprehensive 
financial look at the City. The components of the report include the independent auditors' report, 
management's discussion and analysis, and the basic fmancial statements (government-wide financial 
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements). This report also 
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 

The independent auditors' report briefly describes the audit engagement and renders an opinion 
regarding the material components of the City's financial position 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), prepared by City management, provides a narrative 
introduction and overview that users of the financial statements need to interpret the basic financial 
statements. The MD&A provides analysis of some key data that is presented in the basic financial 
statements and addresses any other currently known facts, decisions or conditions that are expected to 
have a significant effect on financial position or results of operations. 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLV ANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

The basic financial statements include the government-wide statements, fund financial statements, and 
the notes to the basic financial statements. 

• The government-wide financial statements focus on the entity-wide presentation using the 
accrual basis of accounting. They are designed to be more corporate-like, in that all activities 
are consolidated into a total for the City. 

o The government-wide Statement of Net Assets focuses on resources available for 
future operations. This statement presents a snapshot of the assets the City owns, the 
liabilities it owes and the net difference. 

o The government-wide Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of City 
programs and the extent to which such programs rely upon taxes and other revenues. 
This statement summarizes and simplifies the user's analysis to determine the extent to 
which programs are self-supporting andlor subsidized by other sources. 

• Fund financial statements focus separately on major Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, 
and Fiduciary Funds. 

o Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of 
expendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful 
in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of 
the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information 
presented by the two in order to better understand the long-term impact of near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide 
reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

The City reports three major governmental funds: (I) the General Fund, which 
accounts for all financial resources of the general government except those accounted 
for in another fund; (2) the Debt Service Fund, which accounts for the accumulation of 
resources, which are principally transfers from other funds, for the payment of general 
long-term obligation principal, interest, and related costs; and (3) the Capital Projects 
Fund, which accounts for the proceeds of debt issuances restricted for the acquisition 
and construction of capital facilities and other capital assets (excluding capital related 
costs financed by proprietary and fiduciary funds). Data from all the other 
governmental funds is combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements in supplementary information. 

o The City's proprietary fund statements follow the governmental fund statements and 
include the statement of net assets, the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in 
net assets, and the statement of cash flows. The City maintains two different types of 
proprietary funds. 

• Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business­
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses 
enterprise fimds to account for its Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer Fund, lee 
Rink Fund, Sewer Transportation Fund, and White Rose Community 
Television Fund. 

• Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses an internal 
service fund to account for the financing of insurance services, human resource 
services, information services, central services and business administration 
services provided to the other funds of the City, both governmental and 
enterprise, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The City's major proprietary funds include the Intennunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer 
Fund, and Ice Rink Fund. The Sewer Transportation Fund and White Rose 
Community Television Fund are the City's non-major enterprise funds. 

o Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government and are not reflected in the government-wide statements, because the 
City cannot use these assets to finance operations. The City's fiduciary funds are all 
classified as trust and agency funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much 
like that used for proprietary funds. 

The City has three pension trust funds and two agency funds. Individual fund data for 
each of these fund types is provided in the form of combining statements in 
supplementary information. 

• The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional disclosures required by 
governmental accounting standards and provide information to assist the reader in 
understanding the City's financial condition. The notes to the financial statements begin 
immediately following the basic financial statements. 

Other Required Supplementary Information is additional information consisting of a budgetary 
comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with budget and certain 
required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to 
provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees 

111 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2011 

Other supplementary information, consisting of combining statements referred to earlier in connection 
with non-major governmental funds, trust funds and agency funds, is presented immediately 
following the required supplementary information. 

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE: 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Assets. One of the most 
important questions asked about the City's finances is: is the City as a whole better off or worse off as 
a result of the year's activities? The statement of net assets and the statement of activities report 
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. 
In these statements, we divide the City into three kinds of activities: 

• Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, 
including general government, sanitation, public safety, highways and streets, public 
works, parks and recreation, community development and planning, and other 
departments and programs. Property taxes, occupational privilege taxes, earned 
income taxes, business privilege taxes, charges for services, and grants finance most of 
these activities. 

• Business-Type Activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover the cost of 
certain services that it provides. The City Sewer System is reported here, as is the City 
Ice Arena. 

• Component Units - The City includes two separate legal entities in this report: the 
York City Redevelopment Authority and City of York General Authority. Although 
legally separate, these component units are important because the City is legally 
accountable for them. Additional financial information regarding the City'S 
component units can be found in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of 
Activities of this report. The separately audited annual financial report of these entities 
may be obtained from the City Finance Office or at the City website at 
www.yorkcitv.org under budget and finance. 

iv 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

The analysis below focuses on the net assets and changes in net assets of the City's governmental and 
business type activities. 

TABLE 1 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary 
Activities Activities Government 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 
Assets: 

Cash and investments $ 8,104,809 $ 4,747,322 $ 19,598,288 $ 34,694,976 $ 27,703,097 $ 39,442,298 
Other assets 9,682,277 11,518,004 39,503,196 38,055,882 49,185,473 49,573,886 
Capital assets 51,748,315 47,663,266 93,246,387 74,418,280 144,994,702 122,081,546 

Total Assets 69,535,401 63,928,592 152,347,871 147,169,138 221,883,272 211,097,730 

Liabilities: _ ... _. __ ._-
Other liabilities 14,167,089 12,661,939 2,693,433 3,264,233 16,860,522 15,926,172 
Long-term liabilities 73,970,742 64,357,723 66,353,107 67,310,526 140,323,849 131,668,249 

Total Liabilities 88,137,831 77,019,662 69,046,540 70,574,759 157,184,371 147,594,421 

Net Assets: 
Capital assets, net 

of reI at cd debt 26,460,627 30,288,176 66,042,820 60,707,836 92,503,447 90,996,012 
Restricted 2,376,241 1,033,782 12,427,020 12,599,636 14,803,261 13,633,418 
Unrestricted (47,439,298) (44,413,028) 4,831,491 3,286,907 (42,607,807) (41,126,121) 

Total Net Assets $(18,602,430) $(13,091,070) $ 83,301,331 $ 76,594,379 $ 64,698,901 $ 63,503,309 

Overall, total City assets and liabilities increased by $10,785,542 and $9,589,950, respectively, for the 
year ended December 31, 20 II. The increase in the City's total assets is the result of the following: 
increase in capital assets in the amount of$22,913,156 (as explained in "Capital Assets" section) and 
total decrease in cash and investments in the amount of $11 ,739,20 I (in association with capital asset 
acquisitions, as explained in "Capital Assets" section, as well as debt issuances, as described in 
"Long-Term Debt" section). The increase in the City's total liabilities is the result of the following: 
total debt increase in the amount of $5,824,425 (as described in "Long-Term Debt" section) and the 
increase in other post-employment liability in the amount of$2,765,888. 

Cash and investments represent 11.66% and 7.43% of the City'S total governmental activities assets at 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Of this amount, 79.10% or $6,410,927, at December 31, 
20 II, and 91.18% or $4,328,829, at December 31, 2010, is restricted, primarily for financing the 
workers compensation and financing projects out of the capital projects fund. Additionally, the City 
operates and maintains the York City WWTP, 102 miles of sewer lines, and one pumping station 
which is reported in business-type activities. The City's waste-water treatment plant serves seven 
municipalities in addition to the City. The $17,522,944 and $34,694,976 at December 31, 2011 and 
20 I 0, respectively, in cash and investments allows for future maintenance, repair and replacement as 
well as improvement to the City'S sewer facilities. 

v 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

The governmental activities capital assets value is net of $68,242,320, or 56.87% and $64,749,105, or 
57.60% of accumulated depreciation at December 31, 20 II and 2010. For the business-type activities 
the capital asset value is net of $58,535,698, or 38.57% and $55,385,155, or 42.67% of accumulated 
depreciation at December 31, 20 II and 20 I O. These percentage rates for depreciation reflect that the 
capital assets of the City, as a whole, have almost 50% of their useful life remaining and also reflect 
the City's commitment to effective and efficient use of resources to provide services. 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government's financial 
position. The City's assets exceeded its liabilities by $64,698,901 and $63,503,309 for years ending 
December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets, 142.97% at December 31, 2011 and 143.29% at 
December 31, 2010, is the City's investment in capital assets. (i.e. streets, street-lights, buildings, 
land, playgrounds, and equipment); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. 
These capital assets are used by the City to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported 
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must come from 
other sources, since the assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City'S net assets (22.88% and 21.47% at December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 
Of the $14,803,261 that is restricted at December 31, 20 11: $9,533,498 is the value of bond escrow 
accounts held for debt service payments, while the remaining amount is restricted to use for 
community planning and development, insurance, and construction. Of the $13,633,418 that is 
restricted at December 31, 2010: $8,428,500 is the value of bond escrow accounts held for debt 
service payments, while the remaining amount is restricted to use for community planning and 
development, streets, health initiatives, insurance, and construction. 

The City's unrestricted net asset balance of ($42,607,807) and ($41,126,121) at December 31, 20 II 
and 2010, results from the recording of unfunded pension bonds, General Obligation Bonds, Series A 
and B of 1995 and Series B of 1998, in the amount of $32,338,721 and $33,053,904, respectively. 
Additionally, the unrestricted net assets for the years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 included the 
increase of the unfunded other post-employment liabilities in the amount of $12,340,282 and 
$9,574,394, respectively. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLV ANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

TABLE 2 
CONDENSED STATEMENT CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 

Governmental Activities Business-I~~e Activities Total Prima!), Government 
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 

Revenue: 
Charges for services $ 14,110,582 $ 12,736,428 $ 18,164,424 $ 16,077,208 $ 32,275,006 $ 28,813,636 
Operating grants and 

contributions 7.401,007 7,908,848 80,825 13,139 7,481,832 7,921,987 

Capital grants and 
contributions 2,102,779 704,466 2,597,518 17,695,119 4,700,297 18,399,585 

Properly taxes 17,221,122 15,102,354 17,221,122 15,102,354 

Payment in lieu of 
taxes 392,659 393,999 392,659 393,999 

Business taxes 2,952,011 2,693,497 2,952,011 2,693,497 

Personal taxes 3,449,975 3,221,868 3,449,975 3,221,868 

Unrestricted grants 2,965,017 1,779,163 2,965,017 1,779,163 

Unrestricted 
investment earnings 123,265 96,961 1,776,852 1,010,075 1,900,117 1,107,036 

Total revenues 50,718,417 44,637,584 22,619,619 34,795,541 73,338,036 79,433,125 

Expenses: 
General government 2,821,550 2,618,186 2,821,550 2,618,186 

Sanitation 3,126,079 2,983,154 3,126,079 2,983,154 

Public safety 29,017,318 29,065,075 29,017,318 29,065,075 
Highways and streets 1,593,414 1,415,646 1,593,414 1,415,646 

Public works 5,671,785 5,219,296 5,671,785 5,219,296 

Parks and 
recreation 2,095,861 2,007,692 2,095,861 2,007,692 

Community development 

and planning 4,491,079 5,733,897 4,491,079 5,733,897 

Other departments 
and programs 2,300,353 1,805,810 2,300,353 1,805,810 

Interest on long-term 
debt 3,295,371 2,777,582 3,295,371 2,777,582 

Tntermunicipal sewer 6,290,864 6,131,550 6,290,864 6,131,550 

Sewer 9,715,709 8,088,576 9,715,709 8,088,576 

Ice rink 1,570,199 1,609,238 1,570,199 1,609,238 

Other enterprise funds 152,862 149,514 152,862 149,514 

Total expenses 54,412,810 53,626,]]8 17,729,634 15,978,878 72,142,444 69,605,216 

Change in net assets 
before transfers (3,694,393) (8,988,754) 4,889,985 18,816,663 1,195,592 9,827,909 

Transfers (1,816,967) 764,487 1,816,967 (764,487) 

Change in net assets (5,511,360) (8,224,267) 6,706,952 18,052,176 1,195,592 9,827,909 

Net assets, beginning of 
year (13,091,070) (4,866,803) 76,594,379 58,542,203 63,503,309 53,675,400 

Net assets, end of year $ ( 18,602,430) $ (13,091,070) $ 83,301,331 $ 76,594,379 $ 64,698,901 $ 63,503,309 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

During 1995 and again during 1998, the City issued capital appreciation bonds and notes (bonds). 
Capital appreciation bonds are sold at a deep discount and amortized up to the face value of the bonds. 
Annual amortization results in interest expense for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements, but not in the governmental fund financial statements. Additionally, repayment of 
debt, while consuming current financial resources in the governmental funds, has no effect on the net 
assets of the governmental activities. In the same manner, issuance of debt, while providing current 
financial resources in governmental funds, has no effect on the net assets of the governmental 
activities. Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the governmental 
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful life and reported as 
depreciation expense. 

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the decrease in net assets of governmental activities resulted 
primarily from the accretion of capital appreciation debt in the amount of $2,650,179 and issuance of 
debt in the amount of $20,085,574, offset by principal payments on long-term debt of $15,898,032; 
depreciation of capital assets in the amount of $3,821,592, offset against purchases of capital assets of 
$7,943,078; and the accrual of other post-employment liabilities in the amount of $2,710,106. The 
other post-employment cost was allocated to all general government departments based on current 
employment. 

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the decrease in net assets of governmental activities resulted 
primarily from the accretion of capital appreciation debt in the amount of $2,349,051 and issuance of 
debt in the amount of $6,324,158, offset by principal payments on long-term debt of $4,945,452; 
depreciation of capital assets in the amount of $3,830,407, offset against purchases of capital assets of 
$2,359,389; and the accrual of other post-employment liabilities in the amount of $3,319,464. The 
other post-employment cost was allocated to all general government departments based on current 
employment. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 20 \I 

The City's business-type activities include the Intennunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer Fund, Ice Rink 
Fund, Sewer Transportation Fund, and White Rose Community Television Fund. 

80.30% of the revenue for business-type activities is derived from charges for services. The City's 
sewer system is comprised of the sewage collection infrastructure, one pumping station and the staff 
and equipment for the maintenance thereof. Expenses include the City's share of the annual debt 
payment on the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and the costs of treatment of the wastewater. 
The costs of treatment are paid to the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund toward the cost of the operation of 
the WWTP and the debt service is paid to the Sewer Authority. Sewer rates last increased in January 
2012. 

The City operates a state of the art regional WWTP that provides service to six municipalities in 
addition to the City. Each municipality, including the City, pays a share of the bond debt on the 
facility and pays the actual cost of treatment for the wastewater that the municipality sends to the 
facility for treatment. In addition, the facility provides industrial pretreatment testing and levies a 
charge by volume for certain material contained in the wastewater sent by industrial facilities. Each 
year in October, the City estimates the wastewater treatment charge per thousand gallons and the 
quantity of wastewater that will be sent to the plant by each municipality and then communicates the 
estimated costs for treatment in the subsequent year to each municipality. At the end of each year, the 
actual cost of treatment is determined. Municipalities that have paid more than necessary receive a 
credit on their fourth payment and municipalities that have paid too little must make up the difference 
in the first quarter of the subsequent year. Wastewater treatment charges are calculated by deducting 
from the actual expenditures of the plant all non-operating revenue, then all operating revenue that 
comes fi'om customers other than the municipalities is deducted from the expenditures. The 
remainder is divided to determine the cost per thousand gallons that is charged to the participating 
municipalities. 

A portion of the wastewater that flows to the WWTP from othel' municipalities is transported through 
the City sewer interceptor system. Each township pays the City $.04 per thousand gallons for the 
wastewater that flows through the City system from the municipality. These payments are held by the 
City in the Sewer Transportation Fund for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the sewer lines 
through which the Intermunicipal wastewater flows. 

The York City Ice Arena is a two-pad ice skating sports facility that was built and put into service in 
200 I. The Arena was built by the York City Recreation Corporation (YCRC) using tax exempt 
proceeds from a bond issue guaranteed by the City. It is situated on land owned by the City in the 
Memorial Park Recreation Complex. The Arena provides ice skating and other recreational programs 
and opportunities to the general public for a fee and also provides facilities for other public social 
events. 

In November 2003, the YCRC notified the City that it was unable to meet its bond payment 
obligation. The City honored the loan guarantee and transferred resources into the debt service 
account at M&T Bank to make the bond payments. The City exercised its remedies under the lease 
and loan agreement with the YCRC and assumed control of the Ice Arena. The City assumed 
operational control of the York City Ice Arena in November 2003. The City operated the facility 
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from January I , 2004 to August 31, 2004. On September I , 2004, Rink Management Services 
Corporation commenced managing the facility under contract with the City. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended December 31,2011 
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As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows 
and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the year. 

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $(740,928) and $(1,053,775). The City's unassigned fund balance (deficit), which is 
available for spending at the government's discretion, was $(7,150,597) and $(5,058,193) at 
December 31, 2011 and 2010. The remainder of the fund balance at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is 
restricted for I) public works in the amount of $369,411 and zero, respectively, 2) community 
development in the amount of$108,760 and $372,125, respectively, 3) debt service in the amount of 
$1,441,293 and $39,898, respectively, and 4) capital projects in the amount of $4,490,205 and 
$3,592,395, respectively. 
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The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, unassigned 
fund balance of the general fund was $(5,576,043) and $(4,511,439). 

The fund balance of the City's general fund decreased by $1,064,604 during the year ended December 
31,20 II. Key factors in this decrease are as follows: 

• Accrual of $423,282 for interest on 20 II minimum municipal obligation late payment. 
• Rising pension costs and rising health care costs for all City employees. 
• Rising fuel costs 
• Antiquated tax structure. 

The fund balance of the City's general fund decreased by $3,490,341 during the year ended December 
31, 20 I O. Key factors in this decrease are as follows: 

• Accrual of $488,457 for interest on 20 I 0 minimum municipal obligation late payment. 
• Accrual of $272,702 of professional services for community development and planning 

projects. 
• $900,000 shortfall in tax revenue due to the economy 
• $1,000,000 shortfall in fees for services due to failure to increase refuse rates and the 

economy. 
• Rising wages and rising health care costs for all City employees. 
• Antiquated tax stl1lcture. 

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $1,441,293 and $39,898 for the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The net increase in fund balance for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010 in the debt service fund was $1,401,395 and $98,094. These increases 
were because of the 20 II one-time increase in pension state aid distributed to the City from the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

Proprietary Fund~ 

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, the Sewer Fund and the Ice Rink Fund at 
December 31, 2011 amounted to zero, $3,461,097, and $(899,712), respectively. Unrestricted net 
assets of the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, the Sewer Fund and the Ice Rink Fund at December 31, 
2010 amounted to zero, $1,897,576 and ($761,282), respectively. The total increase/(decrease) in net 
assets for these funds for the year ended December 31, 20 II was $98,047, $6,450,681 and $(39,353), 
respectively. The total increase/(decrease) in net assets for these funds for the year ended December 
31, 20 I 0 was $135,613, $18,193,658, and $(94,365), respectively. Other factors concerning the 
finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type 
activities. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

General Fund 

Revenue and expenditures for most of the City's general operations are accounted in the City's 
General Fund. These operations include general government, sanitation, public safety, highways and 
streets, public works, community development and planning and other departments and programs. 
For the year ended December 31, 20 II, the final revenue, including transfers-in, budget was 
$42,869,734 and the final expenditure, including transfers-out, budget was $39,473,526. 

The City adopts a budget pursuant to the City Charter and ordinances by December 31 of the 
preceding year. Over the course of the budget year, budget transfers and budget amendments occur. 
Budget transfers are approved by the business administrator within the limits of discretion granted to 
that officer by the City Ordinances. Budget amendments are submitted for approval to City Council 
in the nature of a bill, which, after adoption by council, becomes an ordinance. Budget transfers and 
amendments are adopted to make resources available to pay for expenses that may have exceeded the 
amounts anticipated and to account for revenue and expenditures associated with grants that become 
available during the budget year. Transfers and amendments are also used to move resources from 
contingency accounts within funds to accounts where the resources are required. 

In 2011, the single largest revenue item in General Fund was taxes at $20,135,399. Actual taxes 
included $13,722,946 in real estate taxes, $2,520,052 in business taxes, $3,674,475 in income and 
local service taxes. The second largest item includes charges for services which at $8,928,729 
includes sanitation fees of$5,048,730. 

The City had a significant negative variance between final budget and actual in the grants and 
contributions line item in the amount of $5,531,924 due primarily to a $5,000,000 RACP grant which 
was originally budgeted in the General Fund but its costs were incurred and the revenue recorded in 
the Capital Projects Fund, as well as a $200,000 pending police grant that was not received and a 
shortfall of approximately $200,000 in CDBG admin reimbursements. Fines and forfeits were under 
budget by $144,443 due to shortfall in ticket notice fees and fines remitted by the magistrates. 

Total General Fund expenditures were $37,160,765 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The 
single most expensive activity in the general fund is public safety, which is comprised of police and 
fire-rescue services, which amount to $26,547,070, or 71.44% of the General Fund actual 
expencJitures for the year ended December 31, 201 1. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION: 

Capital Assets 

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type actIvItIes as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounts to $144,994,702 and $122,081,546, respectively. This 
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, land improvements, equipment and furniture and 
infrastructure. The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year 
was 18.77 percent (an 9.25 percent increase for governmental activities and a 25.30 percent increase 
for business-type activities). 

Major capital asset events during the year ended December 31,2011 included the following: 

• 101 South George Street building acquisition and renovations totaling $4,010,895. 

• Acquisition of the NOlihwest Triangle land at a cost of$550,000. 

• Various vehicle purchases, including $335,490 for a Camel Model 200 Vactor Truck and 
$172,124 for an International Dump Truck. 

• Various building and system addition and improvements were completed in the Sewer 
Fund's WWTP at a cost of $12, 192,039. 

• Poorhouse Siphon replacement of sewer system totaling $4,007,013. 

• Co-Generation System replacement of sewer system totaling $3,993,953. 

Major capital asset events during the year ended December 31, 20 I 0 included the following: 

• The City purchased several vehicles, including a $121,258 dump truck with plow, streets and 
highways department truck in the amount of $53,393, and police vehicles in the amount of 
$103,832. 

• Street improvements and streets cape projects totaling $1,781,777. 

• Various building and system additions and improvements were completed in the Sewer 
Fund's WWTP, including a re-roofing project, at a cost of$10,771,881. 

• Sewer infrastructure projects, including the Northwest Triangle Interceptor replacement 
project, were completed at a cost of $1, I 07,910. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note lIon page 43 ofthis repoli. 
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At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the City had total general obligation bonds and notes outstanding of 
$53,606,557 and $46,162,472, respectively. Revenue bonds in the amount of $65,479,600 and 
$66,975,428, respectively, represent bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources. 

The City's total debt increased by $5,824,425 during the year ended December 31, 2011. The City 
issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 20 11, as well as Series A and Series B of 20 II, in the 
aggregate amount of $14,050,550 to be used for various capital projects and to currently refund the 
General Obligation Notes, Series A and B of2010 (Series A and B 2010 Notes). The City also issued 
Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 20 II in the amount of $1 ,500,000. These Bonds were 
issued for the utilization, development, and construction of alternative lean energy projects. The City 
also entered into new capital leases during 2011, the largest of which was for the purchase ofa Camel 
Model 200 in the amount of $335,490. These increases, in addition to an additional drawdown in the 
amount of $5,753,765 of the Series A and B 2010 Notes (prior to the current refunding) and an 
increase of $3,936,072 in accretion of capital appreciation bonds, was offset by $20.2 million in debt 
repayments (including the refunding of $1 0.57 million, as explained previously). 

The City's total debt increased by $28,890,302 during the year ended December 31, 2010. The City 
issued the Series A and B 20 I 0 Notes to provide funds for various capital projects, including 
purchasing and furnishing a building, renovating an existing City building, paying the City's share of 
the Poor House Run sewer project, the Arch Street interceptor project, the Ohio Blenders acquisition, 
and paying related financing costs. The amount drawn down during 20 lOon the Series A and B 20 I 0 
Notes totaled $4,819,507. The City also issued Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of2010, as 
well as Series A of 20 I 0, in the aggregate amount of $33,285,000. These Bonds were issued to 
finance projects of the Authority and to refund the Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series of 2007, 
which amounted to $10,000,000. An additional $5,258,769 was drawn down on the Series 2008 
Revenue Bonds during the year ended December 31, 2010. The City also entered into new capital 
leases during 2010, the largest of which was for the purchase of a dump truck in the amount of 
$121,258. These increases, in addition to an additional drawdown in the amount of$I,330,000 of the 
Section 108 loan and an increase of $3,804,408 in accretion of capital appreciation bonds, was offset 
by $9.4 million in debt repayments (not including the refunding of $10 million, as explained 
previously). 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note 13 on page 47 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES: 

The City finished 2010 with a $(4,511,439) accumulated deficit in the General Fund. The deficit grew 
by $1,064,604 in 2011 resulting in an accumulated deficit at the end of2011 of$(5,576,043). In 2012 
and 2013, the City budgeted to reduce the accumulated deficits. Since 2008, the City has avoided 
fiscal calamity by delaying the payment of its pension minimum municipal obligation (MMO) to the 
subsequent year. However, as the shortfall approaches the full amount of the MMO, the ability of the 
City to continue unreduced operations becomes more tenuous. Eventually resources will be exhausted 
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before the City reachs the end of the year and services will be drastically reduced. So things are not 
getting much bettcr. 

Balancing a municipal budget is a challenge in the best of situations. Even when revenue generating 
methods are adequate to the level needed to fund the public services that most agree are necessary, 
arguments are made pro and con for every revenue raising and expense I'educing method. Every 
government initiative has its interest group and its challengers. The situation facing Pennsylvania 
cities is that, if left alone, revenue stays stagnant and expenses grow. This makes balancing a 
Pennsylvania city budget a most arduous task. 

Like 2008-2010, 2011 was a challenging year for the City of York's governmental funds. The 
continuing trend is for costs to increase, and for revenue to remain steady, as impacted by local trends 
and the physical and legal conditions that prevail in Pennsylvania. The challenge is to find a way to 
make an antiquated revenue generating system yield adequate revenue to pay rising costs without 
further impoverishing the local population while, at the same time, struggling to wring evel'y penny of 
savings from the City's expenditure obligations. Employee health care, public safety pensions, the Act 
III labor relations process, and the antiquated and inadequate methods by which revenue is raised to 
pay for municipal services continue to work together to challenge the City officials' creativity in 
balancing revenue and expenditures. 

Since 2008, the City has avoided fiscal calamity by delaying the payment of its pension MMO to the 
subseqnent year. However, as the shortfall approaches the full amount of the MMO, the ability of the 
City to continue unreduced operations becomes more tenuous. Eventually resources will be exhausted 
before we reach the end of the year and services will be drastically reduced. Delaying the MMO 
payment also ends up costing the City in interest payments. Although the delayed payment of the 
20 I I MMO reduced stress on cash flow, that stress reduction came at a cost of almost $500,000 in 
interest. Additionally, the 2011 MMO was not fully paid until the beginning of2013. Although this is 
the only method of assuring adequate cash flow available to the City, short of a calamitous increase in 
taxes, it is not sustainable over the long tenn. 

Public safety costs, particularly police and fire fighter labor costs, continue to rise greater than the rate 
of inflation. Between 2001 and 2011, the police department budget increased by an average 9.6% per 
year while the fire department budget increased by an average 9.8% per year. The General Fund, 
however, only increased on average 7.5% per year and real estate taxes only increased by an average 
5.5% per year. One result of this trend is that while in 2001 total taxes made up 56% of the General 
Fund revenue, in the 2011 budget total taxes were only 46% of the General Fund revenue. Another 
result of the trend is that the share of resources devoted to other general fund activities has shrunk: the 
Elected Appointed in 200 I was 4.9% of the General Fund budget while in 20 II it is 3.37% of the 
General Fund budget, Business Administration in 2001 was 6.1% while in 2011 it is 5.31%, Public 
Works in 2001 was 22% while in 2011 it is 15.98%, Economic Development in 2001 was 1.9% while 
in 2011 it is 1.79%, Community Development in 2001 was 4.7% while in 2011 it is 4.7%. In 2001, 
Public Safety consumed 60% of the City's General Fund budget and in 2010 it consumed about 72% 
of the General Fund budget. In 2011, public safety costs consumed just under 72% of the general fund 
budget but this was due to a large increase in real estate tax rate and not a decrease in expenses. If the 
trend continues, then by 2020 Public Safety will consume more than 80% of the General Fund budget. 

xvi 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 20 II 

The Act III public safety arbitration process continues to contribute to the steep rise in public safety 
costs. Notwithstanding the $27 million unfunded liability in the police pension fund, an arbitrator 
awarded enhanced pension benefits to police officers including a Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
and what is called a Pittsburgh Plan. The Pittsburgh Plan allows an officer with twenty years six 
months of service to leave the police force and continue to contribute to the fund the amount that 
would have been contributed if slhe continued to work. When slhe reaches the age of retirement, the 
pension benefit will be based upon what the officer would have been earning if slhe had remained on 
the force to age 50. Since the officers contributions are significantly less than the annual normal cost, 
the City is forced to fund a pension benefit for an employee who is no longer providing service to the 
City. 

Until recently, Act 47 has been a tool for municipalities to consider in its efforts to avert fiscal 
distress. Two of the three most valuable tools in Act 47 are the recovery plan supremacy over 
collective bargaining and the ability to implement a commuter tax. These two tools are virtually 
unavailable now given the decision of the Supreme Court in the Scranton cases and the Legislature's 
actions in the Harrisburg Act 47 situation. The chronic common problems of the 3ed class cities in 
Pennsylvania include legacy costs such as pensions and retiree health care, a public safety labor 
relations process that is unfair to employers, and a revenue generating system that is antiquated, 
insufficient, and overly dependent upon the real estate tax. The commuter tax and collective 
bargaining provisions were aimed at addressing two of the chronic common problems of3'd class city 
fiscal malaise. Under the current circumstances, these two tools are not available. 

In 2005, the City contribution to the employee pension funds was $2,034,131. In 2006, the obligation 
was $4,863,063. In 2007, $4,960,833 and in 2008, it was calculated to be $5,069,057. 98% of this 
contribution comes from the General Fund. For 2009, the MMO was $5.25 million and, in 20 I 0, the 
MMO was $5.4 million. The 20 I ° MMO is based on the 2007 valuation. The 20 II MMO will be 
based upon the 2009 valuation, a time at which pension assets were at their lowest. Utilizing the 130% 
asset smoothing, the City'S pension has been designated as moderately distressed. If the funds had 
been valued at market value, they would have been designated severely distressed. Using the market 
value of the fund assets, the 2011 MMO would be $8,349,760, an increase of almost $3,000,000. 
Using the 130% asset smoothing method reduces the 2011 MMO to $6,620,000, an increase of 
$1,200,000. The level of distress also provides a 75% MMO relief for years 2011-2014 for moderate 
distress level II. Using the smoothing method of valuation and taking advantage of the MMO relief, 
the City MMO for 2011 was $5,859,263 and for 2012 the MMO was $6,028,300. In 2013, the MMO 
dropped by $300,000 to $5,708,572. 

In 2005, the City conducted an in depth financial study and prepared a five year budget projection. 
The City employed the aid of a public finance consultant, Public Financial Management (PFM). PFM 
made suggestions and recommendations to reduce costs and increase revenue. Since that time, the 
City has made efforts and progress on implementing most of those suggestions and recommendations. 
A key recommendation was to reduce labor costs by modifying the employee health plan design and 
by limiting wage increases over the coming years. In 20 10, the City hired PFM to update the study 
and develop a new 5 year projection for the non public safety departments. That new report was 
delivered, with revisions, on November 1,2011. The analysis and recommendations are under review 
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for implementation in 20 II and 2012. The report includes strong recommendations that the growth in 
the City's personnel costs must be reined in. However, a comparison of the growth in the City's 
personnel costs are not out of line with either the CPl, nor with household growth trends in the 
surrounding region. So the recommendation begs the question of how the City is to remain 
competitive in the employment market if it is hold the growth of wages down. 

The City hired Public Safety Solutions Inc. (PSSI) in 2009 to conduct a study of the York City Fire 
Department. The City has studied the recommendations and has, or is in the process of, implementing 
many of them. As a result of the Study, the City has joined with North York to provide fire protection 
services for an annual fee and the City has taken a piece of apparatus out of service with the 
expectation of saving about $400,000 per year in overtime costs. 

The City hired the Police Executive Research Forum with York Counts, a local grass roots strategic 
planning group, to study the potential to create a Metro York Police Department. The Study included 
recommendations for individual departments to enhance efficiency. The study was completed in mid-
2012 and the recommendations are under review by the City Police Department. York Counts has 
taken over responsibility to promote regionalization of the Metro York police depaltments and has 
met with quite a bit of resistance from neighboring communities. 

Employee health care continues to be one of the key drivers of the increases in the cost of the delivery 
of municipal services. In 2007, the City hired Riverside Consulting to assist in developing a strategy 
to reduce the rate of increase in health care costs. After an in depth analysis of cost and usage trends 
and member demographics, Riverside developed a new employee health care plan, a true Preferred 
Provider Organization, that includes wellness programs and incentives. Riverside assisted the City in 
doing a request for proposals to hire a new third party administmtor. Resulting fi'om that process was 
the retention of Capital Blue Cross for three years, 2008-2010, and 2011-2013, as the City's TPA. 
Hiring CBC as the City's TPA gave the City access to the claims processing experience and 
infmstructure and the contractual service and product discounts of a major health care insurer while 
retaining the significant cost savings of self insurance. Finally, Riverside aided the City in the 
development of a pharmacy benefit program that included a three tier co-pay structure, mandatory 
generic usage, a step therapy program, and a direct contract with the pharmacy benefit administrator 
that resulted in bigger discounts and rebates than were previously enjoyed. 

The new health care plan, including increases in premium sharing, has been implemented for non­
union employees, the blue collar Teamsters bargaining unit, International Brotherhood of Electrical 
Workers, and the Fraternal Order of Police. The Clerical union will be in the new PPO health care 
plan effective January I, 2013. Because of the reluctance of Act III arbitrators to impose premium 
sharing on police, the health care plan for the FOP for the remainder of this contract term will likely 
see very few officers paying a premium for coverage. 

From 2003 to 2008, total health care costs went from $4 million to $6.8 million. In 2008, health care 
was budgeted at $5,595,000, but the actual costs were $6,818,622, almost $1,200,000 over budget. In 
2009 health care costs were budgeted at $6,275,000 and came in at $6,313,480. While the actual came 
in about $40,000 over budget, it was $550,000 below the actual for 2008. For 20 I 0, the City budgeted 
$6,547,500 and finished the year at $6,472,871, about $75,000 under budget. In 20 II, the City 
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budgeted $6,784,600 and spent $8,401, I 06. The expenditures in excess of budget are largely due to 
several high cost participant health issues. 12 high cost claimants alone incurred $2,260,000 in 
expenses and the top four claimants cost $1,300,000. The City received a payment from the Stop Loss 
carrier of $736,500. However, the City anticipates that the impact will be significant on the 2012 
budget as the conditions are ongoing and the City anticipates lasering of those participants with higher 
deductibles. The City anticipates that the health care changes that have been put into place will slow 
the rate of growth over the next few years. The City is currently reviewing the plan to identifY other 
cost saving measures, including further raising premiums for employees, mandatory spousal use of 
own coverage and some increases in deductibles and co-insurance. 

2011 saw some significant achievements in the City. The City acquired a building for a new City Hall 
and undertook renovations. The City renovated four community centers: Sylvia Newcomb Center, 
Rotary Kranich Center, Yorktown Center, and the Princess Street Center. The City completed 
important projects for the Northwest Triangle including the acquisition of the last parcel of land, 
installation of a new sewer line, completion of the Beaver Street streetscape, and completion of 
environmental remediation. The commercial sector of the Triangle is now occupied and 80% of the 
residential portion is under option to two developers. The Poorhouse run sewer line replacement is 
well underway and was completed in early 2012. 

The Salem Square Revitalization project converting multi-unit rental properties back to eleven single 
family houses and installation of a new streetscape along the 600 block of West Princess Street and 
three blocks of South Penn Street including new sidewalks, streetlights and trees was completed 
during the year. With State RACP money, the City has commenced the Market District Revitalization 
project that includes renovation of the Central Market, the Farmers Market, and construction of the 
Market View Eagles Art Center. 

The General Authority completed renovation of the Market Street Garage and commenced major 
renovations of the Philadelphia and King Street Garages. At the WWTP, the City began the Ostara 
process that extracts phosphorous from wastewater to be resold as fertilizer and installed new micro 
turbines to capture methane gas and use it to generate power to operate the facility. 

The Sylvia Newcomb Center has been fitted with a new HV AC system, including a new boiler, 
making it attractive for the continued occupancy of the Children's Home of York. The Rotary­
Kranich Center has been renovated to accommodate a day care center that is paying rent to the City. It 
has also been renovated to house the new WRCT studio. Renovated with revenue from a line of credit 
and equipped with money from Com cast, the WRCT studio will provide a well-equipped base from 
which the station can continue its community work and will provide a resource for broadcast 
enthusiasts to create local programming. The roof has been replaced on the Princess Street Center and 
new windows have been installed in the Yorktown Center. 

In 2011, a ten-year effort culminated in the City acquiring the old York Federal Savings and Loan 
Building at 101 South George Street to be used for the new City Hall. Agreement was reached with 
the win/win strategy of offering Sovereign Bank the ability to enter into a long-term lease with the 
City so they could stay at their present location. In addition to the acquisition of the building, 
renovations were undertaken to fit the building to the use of the City for City Hall. The renovations 
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and the move into the new City Hall were completed in March of 20 12. This move has had no tax 
impact on the taxpayers and no financial impact on operating costs of the City since the money 
previously spent on rent plus the new revenue from leasing part of the building back to Sovereign 
Bank are adequate to pay the debt service for acquisition and renovation of the new building. Upon 
completion of the new City Hall, the City commenced renovation of the previous City Hall at 50 West 
King Street into a modern police station. The cost to do so is estimated to be $5,000,000 to be paid by 
a RACP grant from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The City issued approximately $14,000,000 
in debt. This debt is to put permanent financing into place for the new City Hall, the community 
Centers, the final acquisition of the last piece of the North West Triangle, and the two sewer projects. 

The antiquated tax structure of Pennsylvania continues to strangle its 3rd class cities. 37% of the real 
estate tax base value in the City is tax exempt. The exempt property includes county, state and federal 
real estate, hospitals, churches, colleges and social service agencies. Everyone of these tax exempt 
entities serves a majority of clients/parishioners/students who are from outside the City, outside the 
county, outside the Commonwealth, and outside of the country. Why are the most impoverished of the 
Commonwealth's taxpayers being forced to subsidize services for people who have no real connection 
to the City? This dysfunctional system caused a combined tax rate increase of 30.25%. This is a 
further burden on a population that has been bearing a crushing tax burden disproportionate to other 
municipalities in the region, 

Likewise the earned income tax structure is flawed. In Pennsylvania, the earned income tax is paid to 
the place you live and none to the place that you work. In 2011, York City residents had a combined 
taxable earned income of$299,000,000 while 38,000 commuters earned more than $1,100,000,000 in 
the City and paid no earned income tax revenue to the City to help offset the cost of services and 
infrastructure that they use for their jobs and professions. Again, the less affluent members of the 
community are paying to provide services to the more affluent members of the community. It is 
regressive taxation at its worst. Even more disheartening is that from 2007-2011 earned income of 
city residents declined by 12.06% while earned income of suburban residents in all contiguous 
municipalities rose by as much as 20%. 

The costs of providing City services rise faster than the revenue that is necessary to pay for the 
services. The City's financial challenges remain rooted in the disjuncture of its revenue sources and 
expenditure obligations. General revenue is primarily generated from taxes: real estate, earned 
income, business privilege, mercantile, and municipal services taxes. The tax bases from which these 
revenues flow are highly local and based upon an antiquated concept of economic activity. Costs, on 
the other hand, are global: energy, materials, insurance, labor, and money are highly influenced by the 
global economy. So long as Pennsylvania's structure for providing and paying for municipal services 
remains rooted in a colonial era governmental and tax structure, City leadership will be challenged to 
maintain the level of services necessary to a healthy community while holding the tax burden at a 
manageable level. 

xx 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Primar~ Government 
Governmental Business-type Component 

Activities Activities Total Units Total 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,693,882 $ 2,075,344 $ 3,769,226 $ 887,150 $ 4,656,376 
Receivables, net of allowance 

for uncollectible accounts: 
Taxes 4,919,048 4,919,048 4,919,048 

Accounts 3,016,708 2,621,380 5,638,088 133,291 5,771,379 

Loans 2,967,140 2,967,140 1,034,340 4,001,480 

Interest 5,776 5,776 

Note 149,745 149,745 
Internal balances (2,970.678) 2,970,678 
Due from component unit 115.293 115,293 115,293 

Due from other governments, net 
of allowance 1,210,585 1,085,762 2,296,347 3,062,492 5,358,839 

Inventory 7,896 7,896 7,896 
Prepaid expenses 23,445 19,333 42,778 1,201 43,979 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 6,410,927 15,375,055 21,785,982 1,090,661 22,876,643 

Investments, at fair value 2,147,889 2,147,889 2,147,889 
Lease rentals receivable 31,911,692 31,911,692 31,911,692 
Capital assets, less accumulated 

depreciation and amOitization 51,748,315 93,246,387 144,994,702 9,624,217 154,618,919 
Deferred charges, net of 

accumulated amortization 400,736 886,455 1,287,191 89,603 1,376,794 

Total assets 69,535,401 152,347,871 221,883.272 16,078,476 237,961,748 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities 4,080,791 2,547,307 6,628,098 498,121 7,126,219 
Accrued liabilities 397,193 95,024 492,217 492,217 
Due to primary government 115.293 115,293 
Due to other governments 87,750 87,750 104,157 191,907 
Due to City of York pension 

trust funds 6,370.844 6,370,844 6,370,844 
Deferred revenue 3,230,511 51,102 3,281,613 568,392 3,850,005 
Line of credit 3,462,712 3,462,712 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 5,271,684 4,530,415 9,802,099 409,118 10,211,217 
Due in more than one yettl' 68,699,058 61,822,692 130,521,750 7,550,882 138,072,632 

Total liabilities 88,137,831 69,046,540 157,184,371 12,708,675 169,893,046 



Primary Government 
Governmental BusinessRtype Component 

Activities Activities Total Units Total 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets net of 

related debt 26,460,627 66,042,820 92,503,447 2,155,944 94,659,391 
Restricted for: 

Public works 369,4 II 369,411 369,411 
Community development and 

planning 108,760 108,760 108,760 
Workers' compensation 456,777 456,777 456,777 
Debt service 1,441,293 8,092,205 9,533,498 19,169 9,552,667 
Revolving loan 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Construction 4,334,815 4,334,815 4,334,815 

Unrestricted (47,439,298) 4,831,491 (42,607,807) 194,688 (42,413,119) 

Total net assets $ (18,602,430) $ 83,301,331 $ 64,698,901 $ 3,369,801 $ 68,068,702 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 I 

Functions/Programs 

PI'imary government: 
Govemmental activities: 

General government 
Sanitation 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Community development and planning 
Other departments and programs 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-lype activities: 
Tntermunicipai sewer 
Sewer 
Tee rink 
Other enterprise funds 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary govemment 

Component units: 
Redevelopment Authority 
General Authority 

Total component units 

Pro/;p'um Revenues 

Operating 
Charges for Grants and 

Expenses Services Contributions 

$ 2,821,550 $ 2,759,125 $ 301,119 
3,126,079 5,166,046 40,702 

29,017,318 4,437,495 750,635 
1,593,414 123,609 770,340 
5,671,785 124,155 39,883 
2,095,861 442,226 183,104 
4,491,079 1,057,781 3,614,733 
2,300,353 145 1,700,491 
3,295,371 

54,412,810 14,110,582 7,401,007 

6,290,864 7,140,272 
9,715,709 9,780,409 
1,570,199 1,104,594 

152,862 139,149 80,825 

17,729,634 18,164,424 80,825 

$ 72,142,444 $ 32,275,006 $ 7,481,832 

$ 860,104 $ 272,924 $ 2,413,265 
1,983,892 1,696,268 283,000 

$ 2,843,996 $ 1,969,192 $ 2,696,265 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Occupational privilege taxes 
Earned income taxes 
Business privilege taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Public utility l'calty taxes 
Beverage taxes 
Payments in lieu of taxes 
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific functions 
Miscellaneous revenue 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Transfers - internal activities 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets (deficits) 
Net assets (deficits) - beginning of year, restated 

Net assets (deficits) - end of year 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 1,210,585 

892,194 

2,102,779 

2,597,518 

2,597,518 

$ 4,700,297 

$ 

$ 



$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

1,449,279 
2,080,669 

(23,829,188) 
(699,465) 

(4,615,553) 
(1,470,531 ) 

181,435 
(599,717) 

(3,295,371 ) 

(30,798,442) 

(30,798,442) 

17,221,122 
1,049,293 
2,400,682 
2,588,989 

309,392 
31,830 
21,800 

392,659 
2,965,017 

123,265 
(1,816,967) 

25,287,082 

(5,511,360) 
(13,091,070) 

( 18,602,430) 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets 

Primary Government 

$ 

$ 

Business-type 
Activities 

849,408 
2,662218 
(465,605) 

67,112 

3,113,133 

3,113,133 

1,776,852 
1,816,967 

3,593,819 

6,706,952 
76,594,379 

83,30 I ,331 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1,449,279 $ 
2,080,669 

(23,829,188) 
(699,465) 

(4,615,553) 
(1,470,531) 

181,435 
(599,717) 

(3,295,371) 

(30,798,4422 

849,408 
2,662,218 
(465,605) 

67,112 

3,113,133 

(27,685,309) 

17,221,122 
1,049,293 
2,400,682 
2,588,989 

309,392 
31,830 
21,800 

392,659 
2,965,017 

1,900,117 

28,880,901 

1,195,592 
63,503,309 

64,698,901 $ 

Component 
Units 

1,826,085 
(4,624) 

1,821,461 

28,111 
33,935 

62,046 

1,883,507 
1,486,294 

3,369,801 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1,449,279 
2,080,669 

(23,829,188) 
(699,465) 

( 4,615,553) 
(1,470,531) 

181,435 
(599,717) 

(3,295,371 2 

(30,798,442) 

849,408 
2,662,218 
(465,605) 

67,112 

3,113,133 

(27,685,309) 

1,826,085 
(4,624) 

1,821,461 

17,221,122 
1,049,293 
2,400,682 
2,588,989 

309,392 
31,830 
21,800 

392,659 
2,965,017 

28,111 
1,934,052 

28,942,947 

3,079,099 
64,989,603 

68,068,702 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Other Total 
Genera! Debt Service Capital Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,126 $ $ $ 952,508 $ 972,634 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,473,058 4,481,092 5,954,150 
Receivables: 

Loans (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $33.000 in the General Fund and 
$1,394,1&8 in Other Governmental Funds) 370,847 2,596,293 2,967,140 

Taxes (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $1 ,219,477 in the General 
Fund, $198,176 in the Debt Service Fund, 
and $110,629 in the Other Governmental 
Funds) 4,579,871 219,045 120,132 4,919,048 

Accounts (less allowance for doubtful accounts 
of'$4,816,545 in the General Fund) 2,152,079 157,182 255,457 2,564,718 

Due from other funds 342,201 44,124 60,000 446,325 
Due from component units 83,109 32,184 115,293 
Due from other governments 1,210,585 1,210,585 

Total assets $ 7,548,233 $ 1,692,103 $ 5,892,983 $ 4,016,574 $ 19,149,893 

Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits) 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accmed expenses $ 863,288 $ 52,634 1,402,778 $ 831,368 $ 3,150,068 
Accrued wages payable 354,030 27,629 381,659 
Due to other funds 7,266,421 1,386,117 8,652,538 
Due to other governments 87,750 87,750 
Deferred revenues 4,640,537 198,176 2,780,093 7,618,806 

Total liabilities 13,124,276 250,810 1,402,778 5,112,957 19,890,821 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Restricted tor: 

Public works 369,411 369,411 
Community development 108,760 108,760 
Debt service 1,441,293 1,441,293 
Capital projects 4,490,205 4,490,205 

Unassigned (5,576,043) (1,574,554) (7,150,597) 

Total fund balances (deficits) (5,576,043) 1,441,293 4,490,205 (1,096,383) (740,928) 

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) $ 7,548,233 $ 1,692,103 $ 5,892,983 $ 4,016,574 $ 19,149,893 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in govel'l1mentai activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, arc not reported 
in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital aSSets 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Other long-term assets arc not available to pay for 
current-period expenditures and, therefore, are 
deferred in the funds. 

Bond issuance costs are not recorded as assets in the 
governmental funds; however, these items are capitalized 
and alllOltized in the government-wide financial statements. 

Long-tclTI1 liabilities, including bonds payable, are 
not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Other post-employment liability 
Loans from other governmental entities 
Capitalized lease obligation 
Compensated absences 
Acctued interest payable 

Internal service funds are lIsed by management to charge 
the costs of insurance services, human resource 
services, information services, central services, 
and business administration services to individual 
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal 
service fund are included in governmental activities 
in the statement of net assets. 

Internal service fund net assets 
Adjustment related to enterprise funds 

Net assets of governmental activities 

$ 119,990,635 
(68,242,320) 

(46,389,271) 
(6,552,877) 

(11,933,752) 
(3,390,000) 
(3,687,128) 
(1,176,312) 

(3,761) 

1,144,554 
(2,410,301) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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$ (740,928) 

51,748,315 

4,388,295 

400,736 

(73,133,101) 

(1,265,747) 

$ ( 18,602,430) 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)-
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Other Total 
General Debt Service Capital Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds 
Revenues: 

Taxes $ 20,135,399 $ 2,280,100 $ $ 1,227,128 $ 23,642,627 
Licenses and permits 1,642,890 1,642,890 
Fines and forfeits 1,918,957 1,918,957 
Grants and contributions 1,667,681 2,965,017 2,034,542 6,051,844 12,719,084 
Cbarges for services 8,928,729 589,927 9,518,656 
Loan repayments 819,780 264,719 1,084,499 
Interest 210 671 881 
Miscellaneous 79,423 184 157,974 237,581 

Total revenues 34,373,289 6,065,081 2,034,542 8,292,263 50,765,175 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 1,875,290 17,356 335,753 270,995 2,499,394 
Sanitation 3,074,541 3,074,541 
Public safety 26,547,070 73,455 26,620,525 
Highways and streets 603,327 777,149 1,380,476 
Publicwol'ks 2,720,867 64,260 2,785,127 
Parks and recreation 1,577,389 1,577,389 
Community development and planning 2,146,151 2,342,373 4,488,524 
Other departments and programs 193,519 1,914,125 2,107,644 

Debt service: 
Principal retirements 4,295,000 11,079,990 380,905 15,755,895 
Interest 54,903 795,266 155,286 1,005,455 

Capital outlay 6,038,787 1,387,178 7,425,965 

Total expenditures 37,160,765 4,367,259 18,249,796 8,943,115 68,720,935 

Excess (deficiency) ofrcvenucs 
over (under) expenditures (2,787,476) 1,697,822 (16,215,254) (650,852) (17,955,760) 

Other financing SOUrces (uses): 
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 20,085,574 20,085,574 
Transfers in 2,403,536 324,584 717,474 236,624 3,682,218 
Transfcrs out (680,664) (621,011) (3,689,984) (507,526) (5,499,185) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,722,872 (296,427) 17,113,064 (270,902) 18,268,607 

Net change in fund balances (deficits) (1,064,604) 1,401,395 897,810 (921,754) 312,847 

Fund balances (deficits) M beginning of year (4,511,439) 39,898 3,592,395 (174,629) (1,053,775) 

Fund balances (deficits) Mend of year $ (5,576,043) $ 1,441,293 $ 4,490,205 $ (1,096,383) $ (740,928) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

Net change in fimd balances (deficits) - total governmental funds 

Govemmental fimds repOlt capital outlays as expenditures, 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of 
capital assets is reported. However, in the governmental 
funds, the proceeds from the sale increases financial 
resources. Thus, the change differs by the net book value 
of the capital assets disposed of. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not 
provide current financial resources are not repOited 
as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance oflong-tcrm debt (Le., bonds, leases) 
provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net assets. 

Debt issued or incurred 
Debt issuance costs 
Principal repayments 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities when incurred 
do not require the use of Cllrrent financial resources when paid in 
governmental funds and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Change in compcnsatcd absences 
Change in accrued interest 
Other post-employment liability 
Amortization of bond discounts 

Internal service funds are used by management to 
charge the costs of insurance services, human 
resource services, information services, central 
selvices, and business administration selvices to 
individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities 
of the internal sClvice fund is reported within 
governmental activities. 

Internal selvice fund change in net assets 
Adjustment related to enterprise funds 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

$ 7,943,078 
(3,821,592) 

(20,085,574) 
400,736 

15,755,895 

(57,943) 
1,629 

(2,682,503) 
(2,650,179) 

(316,673) 
(227,827) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ 312,847 

4,121,486 

(36,437) 

(46,817) 

(3,928,943) 

(5,388,996) 

(544,500) 

$ (5,511,360) 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICITS) - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 20 II 

Business-type Activities - Ellterprise Funds 

Olher Internal 
[ntcrlllunidpa[ Sewer Ico,! Rink Enterprise Service 
Sewer Fund Fund Fund Funds Tolal Fund 

Assets 
tunent assels: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,325,789 $ 583,&95 $ 165,660 $ $ 2,075,344 $ 721,248 
Receivables: 

Lease rcntals, ennen! 1,457,823 1,457,823 
Accounts receivable (!ess allowance for 
doubtfUlllccounts of $7,41 0,600) 254,647 2,327,245 3,626 35,862 2,621,380 4$1,990 

[nvcnlolY 7,896 7,896 
Prepaid expenses 19,333 19,333 23,445 
Due from olher gOVCI"Ill11cnlS 946,551 139,211 1,085,762 
Dne frolll other funds 903947 11581,868 2,485,815 2,097,473 

Total current assets 3,430934 6,090,042 196,515 35 &62 9,753,353 3,294,156 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 13,716,597 1,658,458 15,375,055 456,777 
Investments 2,147,889 2,147,889 

Total restricted assets 15:864:486 1.658.458 J7,522,944 456:777 

Noncurrent assets: 
Lease rentals receivable, long·tenll 30,453,869 30,453,869 
Capita! assets, net of accumulated 
deprcciation 89,190,154 4,043,781 12,452 93,246,387 

DcfelTed charges (net of accumulated 
amorti'Zation ofSI12,898) 886,455 886,455 

Total nOncurrent assets 120,530,478 4,043:781 12452 124.586,711 

Total assets 3430934 142,485,006 4240,296 1:706:772 151,863,008 3750,933 

Liabilities 
CUlTent 1mbhl1Cs; 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 337.356 2,078,270 127,372 4.309 2,547,307 930,723 
Accrued wages payablc 38,235 8,055 4,808 1,834 52,932 11.773 
Accrued interest 42,092 42.092 
Due to other funds 903,947 870,853 150,638 1,925,438 822.481 
Deferred revenue 51,102 51,102 

Total cnrrent liabilities 375591 2,990,272 1:096227 156,781 4,618,87] 1,764,977 

Current liabilities payable frolll 
restricted assets: 

Cnrrent portion of capitalized leasc 
obligations 123,690 15,615 139,305 
Current portion of bonds and notes payable 4,011,110 380,000 4,391,110 151,144 

Total elUl'ent liabilities payable 
from restricted resources 4,134.800 395,615 4,530,415 151,144 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Accrued compensated absences 147.063 31,131 3.583 181,777 67,379 
Other post-retirelllent liability 231,923 49,300 15,693 296,916 109,6J4 
Capitalized lease obligations 400,517 225,996 626,513 
Bonds and notes outstanding 56,282,486 4,435,000 60,717,486 513265 

Total nOlleurrcnt liabilities 378.986 56,763,434 4,660,996 19,276 61,822,692 690.258 

Tota! liabilities 754 1577 63.8881506 6,152,838 176,057 70,971.978 2,6061379 

Net Assets ~Defici'sl 
Invested lEI capital assets, net 01 
related debt 67,043,198 (1,012,830) 12,452 66,042,820 

Restricted: 
Debt scrvice 8,092.205 8,092,205 
Construction 2.676,357 1,658,458 4,334,815 
Workers' compensation 456,777 

Unrestricted 3,461.097 (899.712l 1140,195) 2,42!,190 687,777 

Total nct assets (deficits) , 21676,357 S 78,596,500 $ (11912542l $ 1.530.715 $ 80,891.030 $ 1:144:554 

A(ljustment to reneet the consolidation of internnl service fund activities related to entcrprisc Ibmls 2,410,30 I 

Net nssets ofbusincss·type activities $ 83,301,331 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 
NET ASSETS (DEFICITS) - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Other Internal 
lnlcnllllllicipni Sewer Icc Rink Enterprise SClvicc 
SelVer Fund Fund Fund Funds Total Fund 

Oremling revenues: 
Charges for services , 7,114,146 , 8,948,807 , 649,495 , 57,726 , 16,770,174 $ 12,467,259 
Rent;11 income 450,290 450,290 
Revenue from other local governments 81,423 81,423 
MiscC!hlll~OUS incotlle 26!126 G02 4,809 31,537 

Total opcr<lting rCVCllllCS 7.140,272 8,949.409 1,104,594 139,149 17,333,424 12:467,259 

Operating expenses; 
Personnel sClviccs 1,933,767 402,899 332,242 102,767 2,771,675 1,461,004 
Utilities 890,400 180,327 1,070,727 
Treatment costs 2,183,727 2,183,727 
Contractu(li services 614,481 183.316 27,563 825,360 
Professional scrviccs 100,017 184,975 57,600 6,579 349,171 365,868 
Materials and supplies 456,112 77,644 195,550 9,315 738,621 224,349 
Sludge 529,741 529,741 
A(lininistrative 537,588 652,484 205,544 30,235 1,425,851 340,106 
Health insurance chlims 7,824,885 
Insurance premimns 20,354 20,354 919,969 
Workers' compCllsation insurance 638,449 
Depreciation 2,980,783 281,315 3,262,098 
Miscellaneous I 464 850 291:128 232 3:966 1760:176 967358 

Total operating expenses 6,526:956 6,956,956 1:300,727 152,862 14,937,501 12,741:988 

Operating incomc (loss) 613:316 1,992.453 (196:1331 !13,7131 2,395,923 (274:729) 

Nonoperating revenue (expcnses): 
Grants 1,218,001 30,000 1,248,001 
Investment incomc 2,282 1,772,663 152 1,755 1,776,852 "8 
Contributions 50,825 50,825 
Springcttsbmy copacity sale 831,000 831,000 
Intcrest cxpense {2,750,488l P6914721 P,019,9602 (42, 1021 

Total nonoperating revenue 
(expcnses) 2:282 1,071:176 (2693202 82580 886,718 {41:9441 

Change in net assets before transfers and 
contributed capital 615,598 3,063,629 (465, 453) 68,867 3,282,641 (316,673) 

Transfers in 4,207,535 426,100 4,633,635 
Transfers Ol1t (51'15512 (2,200,0001 {99,117) P,816,6681 

Challge in net assets belare contributed capital 98,047 5,071,164 (39,353) (30,250) 5,099,608 (316,673) 

Contrib\ltcd capitol 1,379,517 1,379,517 

Change in nel assels (deficits) 98,04'1 6,450,681 (39,353) (30,250) 6,479,125 (316,673) 

Net assets (deficits) - beginning of year 2578310 72,145,819 (1,8731892 L560,965 [,461,227 

Net assets (deficits) - end of year , 2:676:357 , 78,596,500 , Pt9125421 , 1,530.715 $ 1
1
144554 

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of illlcmal servicc fund activities 
related to enterprise limos 227:827 

Changc in net assets (dcfici!s) ofbusincss-type activities , 6,706,952 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Business-type Activities - Entcl)Jrisc Funds 

Other Internal 
intcnnumcipal Sewcl Icc Rink Enterprise Service 
Sewer Fund Fund Fund Funds Total Fund 

Cash 110ws fronl operating activilics: 
Receipts from customers lind users $ 5,697,493 $ 7,962,104 , 1,116,539 , 148,102 $ 14,924,238 $ 12,149,481 
Payments to suppliers (4,726,678) (5,353,078) (33,879) 58,962 (10,054,673) (10,372,647) 
Payments to employees (1.8951OSOl (390,982! (331 7602 (94,895! (2,7 J 2,6871 (1,425,8471 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities (924,235l 2.218,044 750900 112, [69 2,156,878 350987 

Cash flows fi·OUl llo11capital financing 
activities: 

Transfers in 4,207,535 426,100 4,633,635 
Transfers out (517,551) (2,200,000) (99,117) (2,816,668) 
Spl'ingeltsblllY capacity sale 831.000 831,000 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities !517:55I l 2.838.535 426:100 199.1171 2647:967 

Cash flows from capital and related 
financing activitics: 

Capital outlays (20,545.771) (5,451) (20,551,222) 
Grants and contributions 2,829,757 50,825 2,880,582 
Proceeds from the issuancc of dcbt 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Principal receipts on lease rentals 
receivable 2,914,932 2,914,932 
Principal payments on bonds and notes (3,921,721) (360,000) (4,281,721) (142,137) 
Principal payments on capital lease (79,230) (14,941) (94,171) 
Interest paid I! .822.6001 !272 292! 12:°94.8921 151:1091 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital 
and related financing activities (19,124.6331 ~652 6841 50825 119:726,492) (1932461 

Cash flows !i'om investing activities: 
Sales of investmcnt securities 9,056,758 9,056,758 
Investment income 2,282 179,578 152 1,755 183,767 158 

Net cash provided by investing 
activities 2!282 9,236,336 152 1.755 9240:525 158 

Net increase (decrease) in eash and 
cash equivalents (l,439,504) (4,831,718) 524,468 65.632 (5,681,122) 157,899 

Cash and cash equivalents 
• begmuing of year 2,765,293 19,132,210 (358.8081 1.592.826 23,131,521 1,020,126 

Cash and cash equivalcnts" end of year , 1325,789 , 14.300,492 , 165:660 , 1.658.458 $ 17,450,399 , 1:178,025 

Reconciliation of opera ling income 
(loss) to net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) , 613,316 $ 1,992,453 , (196,133) , (13,713) , 2,395,923 $ (274,729) 
A{ljustmellts to reconcile opcT3ting 
income (loss) to net cash provided 
by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation 2.980,783 281,315 3.262,098 
Grants 30,000 30,000 
(Increase) decreasc in: 

Accounts receivable (55,548) (987,305) 9,05 I (21.047) (1,054.849) (317.778) 
Invcn10ry (628) (628) 
Prepaid expenses ( 12,639) (12,639) 106,076 
Due from olher governl11~nts (946,551) (946,551) 
Due from other funds (56,468) (1,581,868) (1,638,336) (193.028) 

Increase (decrease) in; 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (133,489) (254,404) 37,198 (3.194) (353,889) 172,808 
Accrued wages payable 1,810 793 482 26 3,111 305 
Other post-cmploymentliabilities 43,031 8,488 4,263 55,782 27,603 
Accrued compensated absences (6,124) 2,636 3,583 95 7,249 
Dclerred revellue 2,894 2,894 
Due to other Ihnds 56,'168 629,360 112,251 798,079 822,481 
Due to other governmen1s <384:212l (384!212! 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities " (924, 235l , 2,218,0'14 , 750!900 $ 112,169 S 2,156,878 , 350:987 

Non-cash items: 
Proceeds Ii'om cnpi1al !case obligations , , 540.565 , , , 540.565 $ 

Acquisition of equipment through capital 
Icasc obligations , $ 540565 $ $ , 540j65 $ 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 3 I, 201 1 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments, at fair value 
Due from City of York 

Total assets 

Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Held in trust tor pension benefits 

$ 

$ 

Pension 
Ttust 
Funds 

75,038,306 
6,370,844 

81,409,150 

81,409,150 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Agency 
Funds 

720,246 

720,246 

720,246 

720,246 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Additions: 
Contributions 

Employee contributions 
Employer contributions 

Total contributions 

Investment income: 
Interest and dividend income 
Net depreciation of investments 

Less investment expense 

Net investment income (loss) 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits, 
beginning of year 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits, 
end of year 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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$ 

$ 

676,357 
5,859,263 

6,535,620 

1,429,926 
(2,751,975) 

(1,322,049) 

(339,259) 

(1,661,308) 

4,874,312 

6,467,830 

6,467,830 

(1,593,518) 

83,002,668 

81,409,150 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - COMPONENT UNlTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Redevelopment General 
Allthorit~ Authority Total 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 827,934 $ 59,216 $ 887,150 
Loans receivable, net of allowance 1,034.340 1,034,340 
Note receivable 149,745 149,745 
Due from other governments (net of allowance of 

$644,643 and zero) 2,779.492 283,000 3,062,492 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,090,661 1,090,661 
Accounts receivable 108.420 24,871 133,291 
Accl11cd interest 5,776 5,776 
Prepaid expenses 1,201 1,201 

Total Current assets 4,751,387 1,613,269 6,364,656 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets (net of accumulated 

depreciation of$i,269,027 and 
$7,445,335) 2,256,038 7,368,179 9,624,217 

Deferred charges (net of 
accumulated amortization of 

$41,250 and $494,960) 62,263 27,340 89,603 

Total noncurrent assets 2,318,30 I 7,395,519 9,713,820 

Total assets 7,069,688 9,008,788 16,078,476 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,700 494,421 498,121 
Due to primary government 2,000 113,293 115,293 
Due to other governments 104,157 104,157 
Deferred revenues 76,207 492,185 568,392 
Line of credit 3,462,712 3.462,712 
Current portion of bonds payable 115,000 115,000 
Current portion ornote payable 294,118 294.118 

Total current liabilities 3,763,776 1,394,017 5,157,793 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Bonds payable 2,845,000 2,845,000 
Note payable 4,705,882 4,705,882 

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,845,000 4,705,882 7,550,882 

Total liabilities 6,608,776 6,099,899 12,708,675 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt (641,699) 2,797,643 2,155,944 

Restricted: 
Debt service 19.169 19.169 
Revolving loan 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Unrestricted 83,442 111,246 194,688 

Total net assets $ 460,912 $ 2,908,889 $ 3.369,801 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements, 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - COMPONENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Pro~am Revenues 

Redevelopment Authority 
General Authority 

Total component units 

Charges for 
Expenses Services 

$ 860,104 $ 272,924 
1.983.892 1.696.268 

$ 2,843,92"- $ 1,969,192 

General revenues: 
Miscellaneous revenue 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Total general revenues 

Change in oet assets 

Net assets - beginning of year, restated 

Net assets - end of year 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 2,413,265 
283,000 

S 2,696,265 

Redevelopment 
Authority 

$ 1,826,085 

1,826,085 

28,111 
33,376 

61,487 

1,887,572 

(1,426,660) 

$ 460,912 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets 

General 
Authority Total 

$ $ 1,826,085 
(4.624) (4,624) 

(4,624) 1,821,461 

28,111 
559 33_935 

559 62,046 

(4,065) 1,883,507 

2,912,954 1,486,294 

$ 2,908,889 $ 3,369,801 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 II 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of York, Pennsylvania (City), was founded in 1741 and chartered as a city in 1787. 
The City is a third class city operating under the Third Class City/Optional Charter Law of 
Pennsylvania. The City's core services are public works, housing programs, recreation, 
economic development, public safety, health and environmental services, sewer maintenance, 
and wastewater treatment. 

The accounting policies of the City conform with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units, except as noted 
below. The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Reporting Entity 

The criteria used by the City to evaluate the possible inclusion of related entities (Authorities, 
Boards, Councils, etc.) within its reporting entity are financial accountability and the nature 
and significance of the relationship. In determining financial accountability in a given case, 
the City reviews the applicability of the following criteria. 

The City is financially accountable for: 

• Organizations that make up the legal City entity. 
• Legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting majority of the 

organization'S governing body and the City is able to impose its will on the 
organization 01' if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, 01' impose specific financial burdens, on the City as defined below. 

Impose its Will- If the City can significantly influence the programs, projects, 
or activities of, or the level of services performed or provided by, the 
organization. 
Financial Benefit or Burden - Exists if the City (I) is entitled to the 
organization's resources, or (2) is legally obligated 01' has otherwise assumed 
the obligation to finance the deficits of, or provide support to, the organization, 
or (3) is obligated in some manner for the debt of the ol·ganization. 

• Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City. Fiscal dependency is 
established if the organization is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, or set rates or 
charges, or issue bonded debt without approval by the City. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the repOlting entity has been defined to include all the fund 
types for which the City is financially accountable and entities with which there is a significant 
relationship. Specific information on the nature of the various component units and a 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1,2011 

description of how the aforementioned criteria have been considered in determining whether to 
include such units in the City's financial statements are provided in the following paragraphs. 

Blended Component Unit 

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the 
primary government's (the City's) operations and so data from these units are combined with 
data of the City. The component unit which meets these criteria is the City of York Sewer 
Authority (Sewer Authority). 

The Sewer Authority was formed in 1950 under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 for 
the purpose of acquiring, consttucting, improving, and leasing the sewer systems and sewer 
treatment works to the City. The five-member board is nominated by the Mayor and 
appointed by City Council (Council). The Sewer Authority's only financial transactions are 
the financing and maintaining of the City's sewer system. The Sewer Authority's financial 
statements are blended with the City's sewer activity and are accounted for as the Sewer Fund, 
an Enterprise Fund in the City's basic financial statements. Separately published financial 
statements of the Sewer Authority are available for public inspection in the City's Accounting 
Office. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Component units which are not blended as part of the primary government are discretely 
presented, which entails reporting component unit financial data in a column separate from the 
financial data of the primary government. The component units which meet these criteria are 
the City of York General Authority (Genel'al Authority) and the Redevelopment Authority of 
the City of York (Redevelopment Authority). 

The General Authority was formed in 1995 under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 
(Act) for all of the purposes authorized under the Act, without limitation, except for approval 
by the City of celtain projects to be undertaken by the General Authority as specified in its 
Articles oflncorporation. The General Authority is governed by a seven-member board, all of 
whom are appointed by Council. The General Authority's primary operations to date have 
been to operate and maintain a municipal parking system and issue conduit debt. The City 
expressly reserves the right which exists under the Act to approve any plan of the General 
Authority as to making business improvements 01' providing administrative services, as those 
are defined in the Act. The General Authority issued debt on January I, 1996 for the purpose 
of purchasing the City's parking system. The debt was subsequently refunded and replaced by 
a note payable to thc City. The General Authority publishes separate financial statements, 
which are available in the City'S Accounting Office. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 I I 

The Redevelopment Authority was formed in 1950 under the Pennsylvania Urban 
Redevelopment Law, Act of 1945 (Public Law - 991, as amended). A five-member board 
administers the Redevelopment Authority, all of whom are appointed by the City Mayor. The 
Redevelopment Authority strategically acquires underutilized, blighted, and vacant parcels 
throughout the City for the purpose of promoting residential, commercial, and industrial 
redevelopment projects in the municipality. The Redevelopment Authority, in January of 
2002, issued debt for the purpose of constructing the Susquehanna Commerce Center Parking 
GaI·age. The Redevelopment Authority publishes separate financial statements, which are 
available in the City'S Accounting Office. 

Related Organization 

Council is also responsible for appointing the members of the Housing Authority of the City of 
York, but the City's accountability for this organization does not extend beyond making such 
appointments. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Stfltements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement 
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government 
and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed 
fi'om these statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are repolted separately from business-type activities, which rely 
significantly on fees and charges to external parties for support. Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the 
primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: I) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items not propedy included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

Measurement Focus, Basis Of Accounting, ami Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are repOlted using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they 
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities 
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. The City considers real estate, 
earned income, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenue, departmental earnings, and 
investment income as meeting the available criteria. All other governmental fund revenues are 
recorded as cash is received because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 
In determining when to recognize intergovernmental revenues (grants and entitlements), the 
legal and contractual requirements ofthe individual programs are used as guidance. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due. 
Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as expenditures in the year when the items 
are purchased. Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences, and employer 
pension contributions are repOIted to the extent that they mature each period. 

The City reports deferred revenue on its governmental fund balance sheet. Deferred revenues 
arise when a potential revenue does not meet the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by 
the government before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to 
the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue 
recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for deferred revenue is removed from the governmental fund balance sheet and 
revenue is recognized. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 II 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the proceeds of debt 
issuances restricted for the acquisition and construction of capital facilities and other capital 
assets (excluding capital related costs financed by proprietary and fiduciary funds). 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

lntermunicipal Sewer Fund - The Intermunicipal Sewer Fund accounts for revenues and 
expenses associated with the Greater York Area Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Sewer Fund - The Sewer Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated with 
providing sanitary sewer services to City residents. The principal revenue source for this fund 
is user fees collected fi'om City property owners. 

Ice Rink Fund - The Ice Rink Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated 
with the operation of these facilities. 

In addition, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of 
insurance services, human resource services, information services, central services, and 
business administration services provided to the other funds of the City on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

Pension Trust Funds' - Account for the accumulation of resources for pension benefit 
payments and the withdrawals of qualified distributions for members of the City police force, 
City firefighters, City officers, and employees. The City sponsors and administers these plans, 
which are defined benefit plans covering substantially all employees. 

Agency Funds - Account for situations where the City's role is purely custodial in nature 
(assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise 
funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent 
private-sector guidance. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 II 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government­
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise 
funds and other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise fi.mds are charges to customers for sales 
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Cash ami Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments (including restricted 
assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash 
equivalents. 

Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Cash and investments in the Debt Service Fund and the Sewer Fund that are in bond trust 
funds are restricted to the purposes set forth by the bonds. 

Cash and investments in the Internal Services Fund that are reserved for workers' 
compensation claims are restricted to the purposes set forth in the City'S workers' 
compensation insurance binder. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value. 

Allowance/or Doubtful Accounts 

The City'S policy is to provide an allowance for loans, taxes, and accounts receivable based on 
past collection experience. The Redevelopment Authority has estimated the allowance for 
uncollectible amounts based upon currently known facts and circumstances. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 I I 

Illterjulld Receivables alld Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of 
interfund loans). During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between 
individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are 
classified as "due to/from other funds" on the balance sheet. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, dams, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by 
the government as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000, individually or in the 
aggregate, and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or 
materially extend lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated 
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and furniture 
Infrastructure 

20 years 
15 to 75 years 
5 to 20 years 

10 to 75 years 

Because the mission of the Redevelopment Authority is to acquire blighted residential, 
commercial, and former industrial properties for the City to land bank, rehabilitate, or 
strategically purchase for future redevelopment projects ranging from for sale low-to moderate 
income home buyers or market rate mixed use development projects, which it does at little or 
no profit, such purchases are expensed at the time of acquisition. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 II 

However, during the year ended December 31, 2007, the Redevelopment Authority entered 
into an agreement to sell certain property acquisitions for $125,000. An additional agreement 
was entered into on December 15,2009 to sell additional property acquisitions for $125,000; 
however, the developer withdrew from the project during the year ended December 31, 20 I O. 
The land was turned over to the developer during the year ended December 31, 20 II. 

Capitalization of Interest 

Interest expense that relates to the cost of acquiring or constructing capital assets by the City is 
capitalized. Interest is capitalized in the enterprise fund financial statements. The total 
interest capitalized during the year ended December 31, 2011 was $475,494. 

Vested Compensated Absences 

Vested compensated absences represent vested portions of accumulated unpaid vacation, sick 
pay, and other employee benefit amounts. It is the City's policy to permit employees to 
accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation, sick pay, and other employee 
benefit amounts, which will be paid to employees upon separation from City service. All 
compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental 
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements. 

Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement 
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the related obligation using the effective interest method. Debt is 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are repOlted as 
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related obligation. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the 
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld trom the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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Accretion of Interest 

Discounts on principal-only treasury strip investments are accreted over the lives of the 
investments as an adjustment to yield using the effective interest method. Discounts on the 
zero-coupon Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 1990, Federally Taxable General 
Obligation Bonds - Series A of 1995, General Obligation Bonds - Series B of 1998, and 
General Obligation Refunding Notes - Series D of 1998 are accreted over the life of the 
respective bonds using the effective interest method. 

Fund Equity and Net Assets 

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified in the following 
categories: 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups all capital 
assets, including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated 
depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets reduce this category. 

Restricted Net Assets - This category presents external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and 
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents the net assets of the City, which are 
not restricted for any project or other purpose. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds repmt fund balance in categories based on 
the level of constraint placed upon the funds. These levels are as follows: 

Restricted Fund Balance - This category represents funds that are limited in use due 
to constraints on purpose and circumstances of spending that are legally enforceable by 
outside parties. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This category represents all other funds not otherwise 
defined. 

The City's policy is to use funds in the order of the most restrictive to the least restrictive. 

24 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

Self-insurance 

The City is primarily self-insured for health insurance. Various governmental funds and the 
proprietary funds are assessed charges based on historical loss experience with premiums 
being treated as quasi-external transactions. The City funds loss claims when incurred based 
upon the evaluation of an independent third-party administrator, together with claims incurred 
but not reported. The Internal Services Fund accounts for the self-insurance program. The 
City accrues claims incurred but not paid at year-end, taking into consideration claims 
incurred but not reported. 

Nonrecourse Debt Issues 

The City (through the General Authority and the Redevelopment Authority) participates in 
various bond issues for which it has limited liability. Acting solely in an agency capacity, the 
City serves as a financing conduit, bringing the ultimate borrower and the ultimate lender 
together to do business. Although the City is a party to the trust indenture with the trustee, the 
agreements are structured such that there is no recourse against the City in the case of default. 
As such, the corresponding debt is not reflected on the City's statement of net assets. The 
amount of nonrecourse debt issues for the Redevelopment Authority is unavailable at 
December 31, 2011. The amount of nonrecourse debt issues for the General Authority is 
$11,800,000 at December 31, 2011. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 
and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Pending Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 61, "The Financial Reporting Entity." The objective of this Statement 
is to have financial reporting entity financial statements be more relevant by improving 
guidance for including, presenting, and disclosing information about component units and 
equity interest transactions of a financial reporting entity. This statement will become 
effective for the City's calendar year 2013. 

GASB Statement No. 63, "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outjlows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. " Statement No. 63 provides guidance on reporting 
deferred inflows and outflows of resources, which are distinctly different from assets and 
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liabilities. As a result of reporting these additional elements, the residual balances will be 
considered as net position, rather than net assets. This statement will become effective for the 
City's calendar year 2012. 

GASB Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. " Statement 
No. 65 reclassifies certain items currently being reported as assets and liabilities as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. This statement will become effective 
for the City's calendar year 2013. 

GASB Statements No. 67 and 68, "Financial Reporting for Pension Plans" and "Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions." These Statements revise and establish repOiling 
requirements for most governments that provide their employees with pension benefits. These 
statements will become effective for the City's calendar years 2014 and 2015. 

GASB issued Statement No. 70, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Financial Guarantees." Statement No. 70 improves accounting and financial reporting by 
governments that extend and receive nonexhange financial guarantees. This statement will 
become effective for the City's calendar year 2014. 

The effect of implementation of these statements has not yet been determined. 

2. BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

I. During August, the various departments and agencies of the City prepare their 
individual budgets for the ensuing calendar year. These individual budgets are 
submitted to the Business Administration Office (Administration) and include 
information on the year-to-date expenditures, projected expenditures for the remainder 
of the current year, and the next year's budget. 

2. Administration consolidates all departmental and agency budgets into a comprehensive 
preliminary budget for the entire City. The preliminary budget details both proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

3. Each director meets with Administration as considered necessary to review his/her 
individual budgets as set forth in the preliminary City budget in the beginning of 
October. 
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4. The Mayor holds hearings pursuant to the Third Class City Code and the Consolidated 
Ordinances of the City. Each department head is required to appear before the Mayor 
in a public hearing for the budget request. 

5. The Administration finalizes the budget and presents it to Council by the second 
meeting in November. 

6. In considering the budget, Council has the authority to reduce any line item by a vote 
of at least three members. In addition, Council may increase or add a line item to a 
budget by a vote of four members. 

7. The proposed budget ordinance must be available for public inspection in the Office of 
the City Clerk between the first and second readings. 

8. Prior to December 31, Council adopts the final budget by enacting an appropriate 
ordinance. 

The Business Administrator has the authority to approve the transfer of unexpended funds 
between accounts except in the following instances: 

I. Transfers of more than 5% of an appropriation item within that fund. 

2. Transfers of more than 5% ofa department's appropriated budget in that fund. 

In those instances and when additional unappropriated funds are needed, Council's approval is 
required. Council has approved all expenditures in excess of the original budget as a result of 
the adoption of the subsequent year's budget document. 

The following fund types and funds have legally adopted annual budgets: 

1. General Fund. 

2. Special Revenue Funds as follows: Recreation Fund, State Liquid Fuels Tax, 
Community Development Block Grant Fund, and the State Health Fund. 

3. 1995, 1998, 2001, and 2002 Debt Service Funds. 

4. Capital Projects Fund. 

S. All proprietary funds. 
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3. FUND DEFICITS/DEFICIT NET ASSETS 

As of December 31, 2011, six funds each had a deficit fund balance or net assets. The City's 
management has addressed this situation and has prepared the following action plan to 
eliminate these deficits in a timely manner: 

General Fund - The fund deficit, at December 31,2011, is $5,576,043. As a result of 
declining revenues due to the antiquated tax structure, national economic recession, 
deferred revenues from unpaid invoices, and State budget cuts, the City has been 
evaluating the revenue and expenditure history and the operations structure of the City 
to develop a long-term strategy for deficit reduction. Potential strategies include rate 
increases for taxes, fees and fines, workforce reduction, and workforce consolidation. 
In the short-term, the City has closely monitored cash flow projections, operational 
expenditures, and is allowing the work force to shrink through attrition. For 2011, the 
City raised tax rates by more than 11 % and raised sewer rates by a similar proportion. 
The Mayor and City Council have been advised that a tax increase of a similar size 
must be implemented for 2012. The City has undertaken three studies of General Fund 
Departments: A regional study of the Police Department is underway and studies of the 
Fire Department and the non-Police General Fund Depa!1ments have been 
completed. The Fire Depa!1ment Study was completed by Public Safety Solutions, Inc. 
As a result of that study, the City has reduced overtime expenditures, has closed a fire 
station, and taken a piece of apparatus out of service. The City is also undertaking a 
study to find a more efficient method of enforcing tenant occupied structure licensing. 
The City commissioned a study by Public Financial Management in 2010. The study 
was completed and delivered to the City in mid-October 2011. The City is reviewing 
that study and preparing to implement appropriate recommendations. 

Recreation Fund - The fund deficit of this fund, which is included in other 
governmental funds at December 31, 2011, of $928,990, is financed by loans from the 
General Fund as a result of revenue falling short of the budget. The City adopted a .25 
mill tax increase in 2011 and has dedicated the revenue from that levy to reduce 
the deficit in the Recreation Fund. 

State Liquid Fuels Tax Fuml - The fund deficit, which is included in other 
governmental funds at December 31, 2011, of $338,930, is financed by loans from the 
General Fund as a result of revenue falling short of the budget. This deficit will be 
eliminated by expending less from that fund than the revenue that is received in 
subsequent years. 

State Gmnt Health Funds - The fund deficit. which is included in other governmental 
funds at December 31, 2011, of$306,634, is financed by loans from the General Fund 
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as a result of revenue falling short of the budget. The budget was based on state 
communications about the amount of the grant to be received but the actual received 
was less than the original communication. The deficit will be eliminated by expending 
less than the revenue received in that fund in fiJture budgets. 

Ice Rink Fund - The fund deficit, at December 31, 2011, of$I,912,542, is a result of 
assuming the capital assets and debt of the York Recreation Corporation and 
continuing losses. Although the ice rink has generated adequate revenue to pay the 
operating expenses and to make a contribution to the debt service, it has not generated 
adequate revenue to cover the full debt service. To assist in reducing the deficit, the 
City has hired a private company with expeltise in operating public ice skating rinks 
nationally. The City is considering refinancing the outstanding debt to reduce the 
annual debt service, although in the long run it will cost mOre in interest. 

White Rose Cable TV Fund - The fund deficit, which is included in other enterprise 
funds at December 31, 2011, of $145,816, is financed by loans from the General Fund 
as a result of revenue falling short of budget. Efforts are underway to establish an 
independent funding source for this fund. In 20 II, a single benefactor donated $48,000 
to keep the White Rose Cable TV on the air. When an independent source offunding is 
established, the deficit will be eliminated. 

During 2011, the City overspent available cash in several of its funds, resulting in large cash 
deficits. Some of these overdrafts have been carried from prior years. The City's Internal 
Services Fund and Sewer Fund had sufficient funds to cover the cash overdrafts. 

Early Intervention Program 

In 2005, the City participated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's (Commonwealth) Early 
Intervention Program (EIP). The EIP was established by the Commonwealth, and 
administered by the Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED), to assist 
municipalities struggling to meet financial obligations to conduct an in-depth historical 
financial analysis and prepare a five-year financial forecast. 

The City'S EIP report projected that if no changes were made, by 20 I 0 the City would be 
confronted by annual budget deficits in excess of $4.9 million. The report includes a list of 
options to increase revenue and decrease the rate of growth in expenses. If all of the options 
listed were implemented and the projections included in the report were realized, the annual 
budgetary deficits would be tenuously balanced through 2009 and would fall out of balance 
again in 20 I O. 
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The City has implemented many of the options described in the report. Although the changes 
do not eliminate the projected deficits, they are significantly reduced. Moreover, the recession 
has aggravated the deficits. 

The City received a grant from DCED in 2010 to update the EIP report. The City is partnering 
with York County for a study by the Police Executive Research Fellowship to complete a 
study on the City and regional police departments and the possible creation of a regional 
department. The City has retained Public Safety Solutions, Inc. for a comprehensive study of 
the Department of Fire-Rescue Services and is awaiting the final report. The City retained 
Public Financial Management (PFM) to study and report on all other aspects of the City 
government. 

The Fire Department Study was delivered in the beginning of 20 11. As a result of that study, 
the City closed a station and took a piece of apparatus out of service. It is projected that this 
will save over $400,000 dollars in oveliime expense. The PFM repO!i was delivel'ed in mid­
October 20 II and the recommendations therein are under consideration. The Police Study is 
not anticipated to be complete until the first half of 2012. The study was to focus on 
opportunities for the creation of a metro York police depmiment and potential improvements 
and opportunities for cooperation amongst various depmiments in the region. The police 
department command staff is studying the recommendations for departmental efficiencies. 
York Counts, a grassroots stl'ategic planning organization managed by the York Community 
Foundation, has taken on the responsibility to promote regionalization of the metro York area 
police departments. York Counts funded the local match for the police study. 

4. PROPERTY TAXES 

The City is permitted by the Third Class City Code of the Commonwealth levy property taxes 
up to 25 mills on every dollar of adjusted assessed valuation for general purposes, exclusive of 
the requirements for the payment of interest and principal on funded debt. The current tax 
levy of the City is 17.39 mills including amounts for debt service and recreation. 

Based upon assessed valuations provided by the County of York, the City bills and collects its 
OWn real estate taxes. The schedule for real estate taxes levied for 20 II was as follows: 

February 16, 20 II 
February 16 - April 15,20 II 
April 16-June 15,2011 
June 16 - December 31,20 II 
January I, 2012 
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By the first Monday in January of the year subsequent to levy, the City turns over all 
delinquent taxes to the County of York Tax Claim Bureau, which collects these taxes on 
behalf of the City. 

5. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to the Pennsylvania Third Class City 
Code and prudent business practices. City deposits must be held in insured, federally regulated 
banks or financial institutions and must be fully collateralized in accordance with state 
statutes. Except for investments in the pension trust funds, permissible investments include 
direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies; certificates of deposit 
issued by insured banks, bank and trust companies, and savings and loan associations; 
repurchase agreements with maturities not to exceed 30 days, secured by U.S. Government 
obligations with collateral to be delivered to a third-party custodian; shares of registered 
investment companies whose portfolios consist solely of government securities; general 
obligation bonds of any state, Pennsylvania subdivisions, or any of its agencies or 
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the issuing entity and having the highest 
rating of a recognized bond rating agency; and pooled funds of public agencies of the 
Commonwealth. The types of investments in the pension trust fund are not restricted. The 
policy also allows investment of funds received as a result of debt issuance in any security in 
which the Commonwealth may invest. Any investment authorized by 20 Pa. C.S. Ch. 73 
(relating to fiduciaries' investments) shall be an authorized investment for any pension fund. 

The City follows the practice of pooling funds (excluding the pension trust funds and any 
other fund which is legally or contractually required to be segregated) for short-term 
investment purposes. Interest earnings are allocated to funds based upon the average balance 
of funds invested in the pool over the previous six-month period. The allocation of the pooled 
investment is included in the respective fund's cash and cash equivalents. 

The deposits and investments of the fiduciary funds are administered by trustees and are held 
separately from those of public funds. 

A. Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City does not have a 
custodial credit risk policy for deposits. As of December 31, 2011, the City'S book balance 
was $12,119,750 and the bank balance was $12,665,681. Of the bank balance, $577,112 was 
covered by federal depository insurance, $12,028,569 was collateralized under Act No. 72 of 
the 1971 Session of the Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which financial institutions were 
granted the authority to secure deposits of public bodies by pledging a pool of assets, as 
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defined in the Act, to cover all public funds deposited in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits and $60,000 was uncollateralized. 

Cash and cash equivalents per financial statement: 
Governmental activities: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Business-type activities: 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Fiduciary funds: 
Agency funds 

Less money market funds 

Total deposits 
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$ 1,693,882 
6,410,927 

2,075,344 
15,375,055 

720,246 

26,275,454 
(14,155,704) 

$ 12,119,750 
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B. Investments 

The fair value of the investments of the City at December 31,2011 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Restricted - Money market funds 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Restricted: 

Money market funds 
U.S. Government obligations 

Total business-type activities 
Fiduciary funds: 

Pension trust funds: 
Fixed income mutual funds 
Other investments 
Collective investment trusts 
Equity mutual funds 
Common stock 

Total fiduciary funds 

Total investments 

$ 

Fair Value 

439, I 07 

439,107 

13,716,597 
2,147,889 

15,864,486 

21,364,663 
365,983 

6,045,819 
43,796,335 
3,465,506 

75,038,306 

$ 91,341,899 

In addition, at December 31, 2011, the City had $105,000 held in money market funds, which 
had a book balance of zero. 

Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment 
transaction will fail and the government will not recover the value of the investment or 
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The City does not have an 
investment policy for custodial credit risk. The City's investment in U.S. Government 
obligations and common stock are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent not in 
the City'S name. The City'S remaining investments are not exposed to custodial credit risk 
because they are not evidenced by securities in book entry or paper fOl'm. 

The U.S. government obligations of the business-type activities are comprised of U.S. 
Treasury bills, U.S. Treasury principal-only STRIPS, and U.S. Treasury Investment Growth 
Receipts (TIGR). These particular STRIPS and TIGR's have little credit and legal risk while 
the market risk is significant as principal-only STRIPS and TIGR's are more sensitive to 
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fluctuations in interest rates than other traditional investments. The carrying amount of these 
STRIPS and TIGR's at December 31, 2011 was $2,147,889 and is reported as patt of 
restricted investments on the statement of net assets. 

Concentration of credit risk. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in 
anyone issuer. At December 31, 20 II, there were no investments held by the City that 
exceeded five percent of the City's total portfolio. 

Credit risk. The City does not have a formal policy that would limit its investment choices 
with regard to credit risk. The City's investments had the following level of exposure to credit 
risk as of December 31,2011: 

Fair Value Rating 

Money market funds $ 14,260,704 AAA 
Fixed income mutual funds $11,683,120 AM 
Fixed income mutual funds $ 310,222 AI+ 
Fixed income mutual funds $ 4,748,541 AA 
Fixed income mutual funds $ 4,622,780 A 
Other investments $ 365,983 Unrated 
Collective investment trusts $ 6,045,819 Unrated 

Interest rate risk. The City does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The 
following is a list of the City's money market and fixed income investments and their related 
average maturities: 

Investment Maturity 
Fair Vallie 2012 2013-2017 2018-2022 2023+ 

Money market funds $ 14,260,704 $ 14,260,704 $ $ $ 
U.S. Government obligations 2,147,889 653,309 1,494,580 
Fixed income mutual funds 21,364,663 3 I 0,222 7,026,448 9,405,213 4,622,780 

$ 37.773,256 $ 15,224,235 $ 8,521,028 $ 9,405.213 $ 4,622,780 

Component Units 

General Authority 

The deposit and investment policy of the General Authority adheres to state statutes, prudent 
business practices, and the applicable trust indentures. The General Authority deposits cash in 
local financial institutions. 
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Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The General Authority does not have a 
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2011, the General Authority's 
book balance was $78,086 and the bank balance was $202,390. The full bank balance was 
covered by federal depository insurance. 

Investments 

At December 31, 2011, the fair value of the General Authority's investment in money market 
funds was $1,071,791. 

Credit risk - The General Authority does not have a formal policy that would limit its 
investment choices with regard to credit risk. At December 31, 20 II, the money market funds 
were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

Interest rate risk - The General Authority does not have a formal policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. The General Authority's money market funds had a weighted average maturity 
of less than one year. 

Redevelopment Authority 

The deposit and investment policy of the Redevelopment Authority adheres to state statutes, 
prudent business practices, and the applicable trust indentures. The Redevelopment Authority 
deposits cash in local financial institutions. 

Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk - The Redevelopment Authority does not have a deposit policy for 
custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2011, the Redevelopment Authority's book and bank 
balances were $808,764. A total of $719,702 of the bank balance was covered by federal 
depository insurance at December 31, 2011, and the remaining $89,062 was collateralized 
under Act No. 72 of the 1971 Session of the Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which 
financial institutions were granted the authority to secure deposits of public bodies by pledging 
a pool of assets, as defined in the Act, to cover all public funds deposited in excess of federal 
depository insurance limits. 
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At December 31, 20 II, the fair value of the Redevelopment Authority's investment in money 
market funds was $19,170. 

Credit risk - The Redevelopment Authority does not have a formal policy that would limit its 
investment choices with regard to credit risk. At December 31, 20 II, the money market funds 
were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

Interest rate risk - The Redevelopment Authority does not have a formal policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. The Redevelopment Authority's money market funds had a weighted 
average maturity of less than one year. 

6. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS - COMPONENT UNITS 

Due from other governments in the amount of$3,062,492 is composed of the following: 

County of York 

Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program­

Renovation and Construction ofN0l1hwest Triangle 
Pl·oject - Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, net of 
allowance of $644,643 

Total Due from Other Governments 

$ 283,000 

2,779,492 

$ 3,062,492 

Grants received are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed 
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability. The Redevelopment 
Authority has used its best estimate to report an allowance based on currently known facts and 
circumstances. 

Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program Renovation - Northwest Triangle Project 

The Northwest Triangle (Triangle) project is an urban revitalization project that covers more 
than 45 acres. The Triangle encompasses an underutilized, largely heavy industrial zoning 
district within a rail corridor. The goal of the project is to acquire, assemble, remediate, and 
make ~shovel ready' land within the redevelopment area. Once this separate and distinct 
project is complete, the City'S hope is that it will be revitalized into a mixed-use neighborhood 
development that will include residential, recreation, and commercial office space 
components. 
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The Redevelopment Authority has entered into a Redevelopment Assistance Capital Project 
(RACP) grant agreement with the Commonwealth to provide assistance for the acquisition of 
land and related infrastructure improvements that are required to get the land ready for future 
reuse. The discrete horizontal portion of the project has an approximate estimated cost of 
$14,650,000 of which $7,000,000 is earmarked as RACP assistance and the remaining portion 
is to be provided from a local match. 

The grant receivable currently recorded for the period ending December 31, 2011, in the net 
amount of $2,779,492, is based on the costs incurred to date which are expected to be 
reimbursed under the RACP grant. In order for the Redevelopment Authority to receive the 
full amount of the reimbursement, the local match requirement must be satisfied in accordance 
with the grant agreement. The matching fund requirement for the Redevelopment Authority 
is $7,000,000, as outlined in the grant guidelines. As of the report date, the Redevelopment 
Authority believes they will secure the local match fund commitments required to meet the 
conditions of the grant. The City and the Redevelopment Authority currently have a planned 
local match of$7,650,000. 

During the year ended December 31, 20 II, an allowance in the amount of $644,643, was 
established for costs incurred under the RACP project, but not yet recognized as reimbursable 
by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Total amounts received under the RACP grant during 
the year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to $1,118,989. 

Reimbursements under the grant are based upon the satisfaction of various special conditions 
of the grant and the Commonwealth's approval of the reimbursement requests. 

Grants received or amounts expected to be received are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
Commonwealth. Any disallowed claims may constitute a liability or reduction of a receivable. 
The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the Commonwealth cannot be 
determined at this time. However, the Redevelopment Authority has used its best estimate to 
report an allowance based on currently known facts and circumstances. 

The Redevelopment Authority has incurred costs on behalf of this project and utilized a non­
revolving line of credit to fund the costs. This line of credit has a balance of $3,424, 135 as of 
December 31, 20 II. It is the Redevelopment Authority's intention to use the reimbursement 
from the RACP grant to pay the outstanding balance on the line of credit. 

7. LOANS RECEIVABLE 

YOI'" Scattered Sites Loans 

During 2001, the City entered into three separate loan agreements under a project known as 
the York Scattered Sites Project for the purpose of rehabilitating seven historic buildings 
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containing 31 residential rental units and six commercial spaces located within the City'S 
historic west end. The loans for the projects are as follows: 

In September of 200 I, the City entered into a promissory note agreement to lend 
$1,000,000 to a local non-profit corporation for the purpose of rehabilitating, preserving 
and/or enhancing seven propelties containing 31 dwelling units for rent. The full face of 
the note plus payment of I % simple interest per year will become due on October I, 2017. 
At this time, the City may demand payment or, in lieu of payment, they may elect one of 
two options, which include the right of first refusal to purchase the property or to extend 
the loan for an additional 15 years. If the City elects to extend the loan for an additional 15 
years, the entire principal amount and any accrued interest will be forgiven at the end of 
the 15-year period. The loan receivable is recorded within the particular fund from which 
the funds were disbursed. Accordingly, $522,750 is recorded within the Community 
Development Block Grant Fund and $327,250 is recorded in the Home Fund, net of an 
allowance of $150,000. The entire loan balance has been recorded as deferred revenue in 
the fund financial statements as of December 31, 20 II. 

In September of2001, the City entered into a promissory note agreement to lend $335,000 
to a Pennsylvania limited partnership for the purpose of rehabilitating six commercial 
properties within the City. The loan is secured by a mortgage with interest charged at 3% 
per annum. The full amount of the note plus accrued interest is due September 7, 2031. 
The loan receivable, in the amount of $284,750, net of an allowance of $50,250, is 
recorded within the Section 108 Loan Fund and the entire loan balance has been recorded 
as deferred revenue in the fund financial statements as of December 31, 20 II. 

In September of2001, the City entered into a promissory note agreement to lend $220,000 
to a local non-profit corporation for the purpose of rehabilitating six commercial propelties 
within the City. The loan is secured by a mortgage with interest charged at I % per annum. 
The full amount of the note plus accrued interest is due September 7, 2017. The loan 
receivable, in the amount of $187,000, net of an allowance of $33,000, is recorded within 
the General Fund and the entire loan balance has been recorded as deferred revenue in the 
fund financial statements as of December 31, 20 II. 

Historic Fairmount Project Loan 

In November of 2002, the City entered into a loan agreement with a Pennsylvania limited 
partnership in which the City has agreed to loan a maximum of $1 ,050,000 of funds fi'om the 
Section 108 Loan Fund, the CDBG Program, and the I-lome Program for the purpose of the 
acquisition, rehabilitation, and construction of 14 parcels of real estate, to provide 38 units of 
affordable housing for general occupancy in the City. The loan bears no interest and the 
principal shall be due and payable December 31, 2035. As of December 31, 2011, a total 
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amount of $715,790 has been advanced on this loan. The loan receivable is recorded within 
the particular fund in which the funds were disbursed. Accordingly, $26,442 is recorded 
within the Home Fund, $264,854 is recorded within the Community Development Block 
Grant Fund, and $317,126 is recorded within the Section 108 Fund, net of an allowance of 
$107,368. The entire loan balance has been recorded as deferred revenue in the fund financial 
statement as of December 31, 20 II. 

Shady Oak Apartments Limited Partnership 

In November of 1993, the City entered into a promissory note agreement with a Pennsylvania 
limited paltnership in which the City has agreed to lend $600,000 of funds fi'om the Home 
Program for the purpose of rehabilitation, preservation, and enhancement of primarily rental 
residential real property containing 35 dwelling units for rent or lease to tenants. The loan is 
secured by a mortgage, with interest charged at I % per annum. The full amount of the note, 
plus accrued interest, was originally due and payable December 1,2009. This loan has been 
extended for an additional 15 years, and the full amount of the note, plus accrued interest, is 
due and payable on December 1,2024. An allowance of the full amount of the loan is recorded 
within the Home Fund as of December 31, 2011. 

Component Units 

Redevelopment Authority 

Loans receivable in the amount of $1,034,340 at December 31, 20 II are composed of: 

The following loans were made utilizing funds received [l'om the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Community and 
Economic Development (DCED) for Housing and Redevelopment 
and Assistance program (HRA): 

HRA 2009 loan bearing interest at 5% per annum with interest 
only paid annually until maturity date in 2018, at which time 
the entire $500,000 is due 

BRA 20 I 0 loan bearing interest at rates varying from I % to 3% 

per annum paid annually until maturity date in 2020, at which 

$ 500,000 

time the entire $500,000 is due 500,000 

Multiple revolving loans made under a United States Department 
of Agriculture grant program with varying terms 34,340 

Total loans receivable $ 1,034,340 
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8. NOTE RECEIVABLE 

The General Authority entered into a Note Receivable Agreement (Note) with a long-term 
tenant of the King Street Garage, whereby, the tenant will reimburse the General Authority for 
the cost associated with a renovation project. Under the Note, the tenant will pay the General 
Authority $2,741 per month including interest at 3.75% and principal, commencing on July I, 
2012 and monthly thereafter until June 1,2017. A corresponding deferred revenue has been 
recorded for the amount of the Note, which will be amortized over the life of the renovations, 
once they are placed in service. 

9. DUE To/FROM AND INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Individual due to/from other fund balances at December 31, 2011 were as follows: 

General Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Other governmental funds 
Intermunicipal Sewer Fund 
Sewer Fund 
Ice Rink Fund 
Other enterprise funds 
Internal Service Fund 
Pension Trust Funds 

Total primary government 

Due From 
Other Funds 

$ 342,201 
44,124 
60,000 

903,947 
1,581,868 

2,097,473 
6,370,844 

$ 11,400,457 

Due To 
Other Funds 

$ 7,266,421 

1,386,117 

903,947 
870,853 
150,638 
822,481 

$ 11,400,457 

Primarily, interfund balances represent short term borrowings between funds for the purpose 
of eliminating negative cash. Additionally, the amount due to the Pension Trust Funds from 
the General Fund is for a portion of the 2011 minimum municipal obligation pIllS accrued 
interest and the participants' December 2011 contributions that had not been transferred to the 
Pension Trust Funds at December 31, 20 II. 
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A reconciliation of the interfund transfers for the year ended December 31,2011 is as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

General Fund $ 2,403,536 $ 680,664 
Debt Service Fund 324,584 621,011 
Capital Projects Fund 717,474 3,689,984 
Other governmental funds 236,624 507,526 
Intermunicipal Sewer Fund 517,551 

Sewer Fund 4,207,535 2,200,000 
Ice Rink Fund 426,100 
Other enterprise funds 99,117 

Total primary government $ 8,315,853 $ 8,315,853 

Transfers are used to (I) reimburse funds for expenses incurred on behalf of other funds, (2) 
move receipts for payment of debt service, and (3) fulfill budgetary transfer requirements. 

10. LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES 

The City has subleased the right to connect to the City's sewage system to six surrounding 
municipalities, whereby the City would receive, treat, and dispose of the municipalities' 
sewage. The municipalities are required to participate in payment of operating expenses, debt 
service on the guaranteed sewer revenue bonds, Series of 1990, Series of2008, Series of201 0, 
Series 201 OA, and Series 2011, and pay a service charge based on usage for the express 
purpose of maintenance, repair, and replacement of the existing interceptor system. This 
service charge is accounted for in the Sewer Fund. 
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Minimum lease rentals receivable as of December 31, 20 II are: 

Years Ending 
Decem bel' 3 I, Amount 

2012 $ 2,959,302 
2013 2,959,303 
2014 3,002,244 
2015 3,022,244 
2016 3,019,956 
2017 2,864,189 
2018 2,866,061 
2019 2,625,628 
2020 853,671 
2021 840,474 
2022 2,202,000 
2023 5,006,894 
2024 5,010,874 
2025 3,823,600 
2026 2,796,122 
2027 1,227,533 

Total minimum lease rentals receivable 45,080,095 
Less amount representing interest 

(at an average rate of3.2%) (13,168,403) 

Present value of minimum lease rentals receivable 31,911,692 
Less current installments of lease rentals (1,457,823) 

Lease rentals, excluding current installments $ 30,453,869 
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11. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 20 II was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Retirements and 
Beginning Additions/ Dispositions/ 

of Year Transfers In Transfers Out End of Year 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land $ 5,485,381 $ 550,000 $ $ 6,035,381 
Construction in progress 426,196 1,706,014 (426,196) 1,706,014 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 5,911,577 2,256,014 (426,196) 7,741,395 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 8,914,760 3,157,201 12,071,961 
Land improvements 4,346,614 284,094 4,630,708 
Equipment and furniture 18,776,324 378,832 (364,814) 18,790,342 
J nfrastructure 74,463,096 2,293,133 76,756,229 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 106,500,794 6,113,260 (364,814) 112,249,240 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (3,860,087) (198,991) (4,059,078) 
Land improvements (2,437,493) (163,608) (2,601,101) 
Equipment and furniture (12,638,084) (945,613) 328,377 (13,255,320) 
Infrastructure (45,813,441) (2,513,380) (48,326,821 ) 

Total accumulated depreciation (64,749,105) (3,821,592) 328,377 (68,242,320) 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated, net 41,751,689 2,291,668 (36,437) 44,006,920 

Governmental activities 
capital assets) net $47,663,266 $ 4,547,682 $ (462,633) $51,748,315 
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Retirements and 
Beginning Additions/ Dispositions/ 
o[Year Transfers In Transfers Out 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 17,445 $ $ 
Construction in progress 3,242,789 15,825,344 (1,791,698) 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 3,260,234 15,825,344 (1,791,698) 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 105,102,152 7,303,050 
Land improvements 22,145 
Equipment and furniture 3,800,357 590,992 (111,555) 
Infrastructure 17,618,547 162,517 

Total capital assets being depreciated 126,543,201 8,056,559 (111,555) 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (44,178,749) (2,705,465) 
Land improvements (8, I 00) (1,107) 
Equipment and furniture (2,571,066) (282,421) 111,555 
Infrastructure (8,627,240) (273, I 05) 

Total accumulated depreciation (55,385,155) (3,262,098) 111,555 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated, net 71,158,046 4,794,461 

Business-type activities 
capital assets, net $74,418,280 $ 20,619,805 $ (1,791,698) 
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End o[Year 

$ 17,445 
17.276,435 

17,293,880 

112,405,202 
22,145 

4,279,794 
17,781,064 

134,488,205 

(46,884,214) 
(9,207) 

(2,741,932) 
(8,900,345) 

(58,535,698) 

75,952,507 

$93,246,387 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Sanitation 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Community development and planning 
Other departments and programs 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Internal services fund depreciation expense allocated 
to governmental activities 

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 
Ice rink 

Total depreciation and amortization expenses - enterprise funds 
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$ 28,393 
27,772 

602,960 
146,244 

2,711,015 
248,598 
42,534 

8,186 

3,815,702 

5,890 

$ 3,821,592 

$ 2,980,783 
281,315 

$ 3,262,098 
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Component Units 

Retirements and 

Beginning of Additions/ Distributions/ End of 
Year Transfers In Transfers Out Year 

Redevelopment Authority: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements $ 3,525,065 $ $ $ 3,525,065 

Less accumulated depreciation (1,128,024) (141,003) (1,269,027) 

Redevelopment Authority: 
Capital assets, net $ 2,397,041 $ (141,003) $ $ 2,256,038 

General Authority: 
Capital assets, not being 
depreciated 

Construction in progress $ 5,156,118 $ 761,709 $ (4,712,342) $ 1,205,485 

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 5,156,118 761,709 (4,712,342) 1,205,485 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 9,030,207 4,721,482 (143,660) 13,608,029 
Less accumulated depreciation (7,038,013) (518,032) 110,710 (7,445,335) 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 1,992,194 4,203,450 (32,950) 6,162,694 

General Authority: 
Capital assets, net $ 7,148,312 $ 4,965,159 $ (4,745,292) $ 7,368,179 

12. TAX ANTICIPATION NOTE OF 2011 

In January of 2011, the City borrowed $8,140,000 in the form of a Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Note, Series of 2011, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 1.81% per annum, to 
cover the shortfall of revenues in excess of expenditures from January I through mid-April, 
when real estate tax revenues become available. Total interest paid during the year was 
$136,693. The entire balance of the note was paid in full by the City in December of 20 II. 

Tax anticipation note transactions for the year ended December 31, 20 II were as follows: 

Outstanding at December 31,20 10 

New borrowings 

Repayments 

Outstanding at December 31,20 II 
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13. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 20 II was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Governmental Beginning of End of Current 
Activities: Year Additions Accretion Retirements Year Portion 

Loans from other 

governmental 

entities $ 3,630,000 $ $ $ (240,000) $ 3,390,000 $ 240,000 

Genera! Obligation 

Notes 13,108,568 5,753,765 480,362 (12,125,409) 7,217,286 1,451,144 

General Obligation 

Bonds 33,053,904 14,050,550 2,169,817 (2,885,000) 46,389,271 3,015,000 

Capitalized lease 

obligation 4,053,492 281,259 (647,623) 3,687,128 565,540 

Vested compensated 

absences 1,178,499 65,192 1,243,691 

Other post~employment 

liability 9,333,260 5,081,313 (2,371,207) 12,043,366 

$ 64,357,723 $ 25,232,079 $ 2,650,179 $ (18,269,239) $ 73,970,742 $ 5,271,684 

Business~type Beginning of End of Current 
Activities: Year Additions Accretion Retirements Year Portion 

Sewer Revenue 

Bonds $ 61,800,428 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,285,893 $ (3,921,721) $ 60,664,600 $ 4,011,110 

Unamortized discount (407,142) 36,138 (371,004) 

Recreation 

Revenue Bonds 5,175,000 (360,000) 4,815,000 380,000 

Capitalized lease 

obligations 319,424 540,565 (94,171 ) 765,818 139,305 

Vested compensated 

absences 181,682 95 181,777 

Other post-employment 

liability 241,134 104,588 (48,806) 296,916 

$ 67,310,526 $ 2,145,248 $ 1,285,893 $ (4,388,560) $ 66,353,107 $ 4,530,415 

47 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20 II 

Component Units 

Redevelopment 
Authority: 

Revenue bonds 

General Authority: 
Notes payable 

Beginning of 
Year 

$ 3,065,000 

$ 5,445,800 

Additions 

$ 

$ 339,581 

LOltns from Other Governmental Entities 

Retirements 

$ ( 105,000) 

$ (785,381) 

$ 

$ 

End of 
Year 

2,960,000 

5,000,000 

$ 

$ 

Current 
Portion 

115,000 

294,118 

In 200 I, the City entered into a Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The funds under the contract were 
utilized for the purpose of rental housing rehabilitation and other various projects, as defined 
in the contract. In August of 2002, trust certificates guaranteed by the Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development were sold in an underwritten public offering. These trust certificates 
are backed by a pool comprised of the original note, as defined by the loan contract. The 
balance due, as of December 31, 2011, was $1,000,000. 

In 2009, the City entered into a Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The funds under the contract were to 
be used for the paving of City streets and various improvements to City-owned buildings. The 
City has pledged its full faith and credit towards the repayment of the Section 108 loan 
obligation, should the City's Community Development Block Grant funds be insufficient to 
meet the debt service requirements of the Section 108 loan. The balance due, as of December 
31, 20 11, was $2,390,000. 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under loans 
from other governmental entities as of December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest 

2012 $ 240,000 $ 132,636 
2013 240,000 126,442 
2014 240,000 119,276 
2015 240,000 111,326 
2016 240,000 102,686 

2017-2021 1,203,000 358,428 
2022-2026 705,000 147,346 
2027-2028 282,000 18,303 

$ 3,390,000 $ 1,116,443 

Genem/ Obligation Notes 

The general obligation notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

General obligation notes payable at December 31, 20 II is comprised of: 

Issue Interest Amount 
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding 

General Obligation 
Refunding Notes, 
Series D of 1998 $ 7,634,459 Thl"l12023 0.00% $ 7,900,000 

General Obligation Notes, 
Series of2002 $ 5,285,000 Thm 2013 3.00% - 3.80% 1,215,000 

General Obligation Notes, 
Series of 2006 $ 1,337,500 Thm2015 6.25% 664,409 

General Obligation Notes at December 31, 2011 9,779,409 

Less unamortized discount on zero coupon notes (2,562,123) 

General Obligation Notes, net of discount, at December 31,20 II $ 7,217,286 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under general 
obligation notes at December 31, 20 II are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, 

2012 $ 
2013 
2014 

2015 
2016 

2017-2021 

2022-2023 

Unamortized 
discount 

$ 

Principal 

1,451,144 
1,145,633 
1,025,901 

691,731 
360,000 
840,000 

4,265,000 

9,779,409 

(2,562,123) 

7,217,286 
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Interest 

$ 76,446 
44,397 

22,346 
11,516 

154,705 

$ 154,705 
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General Obligation Bonds 

The general obligation bonds outstanding are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

The following is a summary of general obligation bond issues as of December 31, 2011: 

Issue 
Series Amount 

1995A $ 76,030,000 
1998B $ 4,440,000 
2011 $ 11,265,000 
20llA $ 585,550 

2011B $ 2,200,000 

General Obligation Bonds at December 31,2011 

Less unamOltized discount on zero coupon notes 
(Series A of 1995) 
(Series B of 1998) 

Maturity 

Thl1l2022 
Thl1l 2024 

Thru 2041 
Thru 2013 

Thru 2027 

General Obligation Bonds, net of discount, at December 31,2011 
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Interest 
Rates 

0.00% - 6.50% 
0.00% 
7.25% 

Variable 
(2.796% at 

December 3 1 , 
2011 

Amount 
Outstanding 

$ 42,955,000 
4,440,000 

11,265,000 

585,550 
9.00% 2,200,000 

--'--':"--

61,445,550 

(12,900,007) 
(2,156,272) 

$ 46,389,271 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under general 
obligation bonds at December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, PrinciEal Interest 

2012 $ 3,015,000 $ 908,297 
2013 4,185,550 1,029,284 
2014 3,750,000 995,200 
2015 4,115,000 974,962 
2016 4,285,000 953, I 00 

2017-2021 22,690,000 4,385,576 
2022-2026 11,240,000 3,581,026 
2027-2031 2,060,000 2,641,590 
2032-2036 2,525,000 1,873,400 
2037-2041 3,580,000 814,897 

61,445,550 18,157,332 
Unamo11ized 
discount (15,056,279) 

$ 46,389,271 $ 18,157,332 

Prior Year Defeasallce of Debt 

The City has, from time to time, defeased certain debt by placing the proceeds of new debt in 
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. The trust 
account assets and the liability of the defeased debt are not included in the City's financial 
statements. At December 31, 2011, the following defeased debt was outstanding: 

General Obligation Bonds, 
Series A of 1995 

52 

Escrowed 
as of 

December 31, 
2011 

$ 9,724,888 

Outstanding 
as of 

December 31, 
2011 

$ 5,927,171 
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Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds 

The guaranteed sewer revenue bonds outstanding are backed by the full faith and credit of the 
City. 

Guaranteed sewer revenue bonds payable at December 31, 20 II are comprised of the 
following individual bond issue: 

Issue Interest Amount 
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 1990 $ 69,775,000 2016 0.00% $ 19,360,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 2008 $ 10,000,000 2022 4.04% 10,000,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 20 \0 $ 22,745,000 2027 4.50-5.00% 22,745,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series A of20 I 0 $ 10,540,000 2019 2.50-4.00% 10,540,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 20 II $ 1,500,000 2021 1.00% 1,453,281 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds at December 31, 2011 64,098,281 

Less unamortized discount 011 zero coupon bonds (3,433,681) 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds, net of discount, at December 3 1, 2011 $ 60,664,600 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under the 
guaranteed sewer revenue bonds at December 31, 20 II are as follows: 

Years Ending 
Decem ber 3 I , Principal Interest 

2012 $ 4,011,110 $ 1,761,763 
2013 4,012,588 1,760,285 
2014 4,094,040 1,758,833 
2015 4,135,507 1,754,741 
2016 4,136,966 1,749,257 

2017-2021 10,963,070 7,818,509 
2022-2026 30,555,000 4,652,414 

2027 2,190,000 104,025 

64,098,281 21,359,827 
Unamortized discount (3,433,681) 

$ 60,664,600 $ 21,359,827 

Economic Defea.l'tlnce of Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds 

On July 15, 1998, the Sewer Authority entered into an escrow deposit agreement for partial 
defeasance of the 1990 York City Sewer Authority Bonds. $5,000,000 was deposited into this 
escrow, which was obtained from capital grants from the federal government. This transaction 
is not considered a legal defeasance and there was no verification of the escrow performed. 
Because this is not a legal defeasance, the bonds are not removed from the financial statements 
and the escrow transactions are recorded. This transaction reduces the lease rental receivable 
from the municipalities based upon the present value of the defeased bonds and the percentage 
of the debt owed by the municipalities. 

York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series of 2001 

The York Recreation Corporation was unable to make its required interest payment of 
$181,493 in November of 2003. As Guarantor of the obligation, the City assumed the 
obligation. By resolution on October 14,2003, the City took possession of the facilities and 
related personal property in consideration for assuming this obligation. 
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York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (recreation revenue bonds) 
payable at December 31, 2011 are comprised of the following individual bond issue: 

Series 

2001 

Issue 
Amount 

$ 7,305,000 

Maturity 

Thru 2021 

Interest 
Rates 

4.10-5.15% 

Amount 
Outstanding 

$ 4,815,000 

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under the 
guaranteed recreation revenue bonds at December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 

Capitalized Lease Obligations 

Principal 

$ 380,000 
395,000 
415,000 
440,000 
465,000 

2,720,000 

$ 4,815,000 

Interest 

$ 243,765 
225,597 
204,803 
181,290 
156,403 
366,405 

$ 1,378,263 

The City leases celiain equipment under long-term lease agreements which are classified as 
capital leases. As of December 3 I, 2011, the governmental activities and the business-type 
activities include equipment and furniture under capital leases with a net book value of 
$3,510,551 and $816,345, respectively. 
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The future minimum payments under capital leases and the present value of the future 
minimum lease payments at December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

Year ending Governmental Business-type 
December 3 I , Activities Activities Total 

2012 $ 724,099 $ 157,554 $ 881,653 

2013 612,449 150,168 762,617 

2014 509,708 145,741 655,449 

2015 473,084 141,568 614,652 

2016 410,430 96,957 507,387 

2017-2021 1,487,310 l3l,095 1,618,405 

2022-2023 256,020 52,438 308,458 

Total minimum lease payments 4,473,100 875,521 5,348,621 

Less amount representing interest (785,972) (109,703) (895,675) 

Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 3,687,128 $ 765,818 $ 4,452,946 

Redevelopment Authority Series of 2002 Revenue Bonds 

In January of 2002, the Redevelopment Authority issued the Series of 2002 Variable Rate 
Demand/Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds for the amount of $3,725,000. The Bonds were issued for 
the purpose of financing the Susquehanna Commerce Center Garage Project. 

The Bonds are not general obligations of the Redevelopment Authority and do not pledge the 
taxing power of the City. The principal and interest on these Bonds is payable only from 
certain receipts including net parking rentals, rates and other charges collected by the 
Redevelopment Authority for the use of the parking facility. 

The Redevelopment Authority entered into a management agreement with Creekside Investors 
L.P. (Manager), whereby Creekside Investors, L.P. managed and operated the parking 
facilities on behalf of the Redevelopment Authority. Under the agreement, the Manager, on 
behalf of the Redevelopment Authority, collected all parking fees, rents, charges, and other 
income attributable to the parking facilities. The Manager deposited receipts in a segregated 
account to be used to pay costs, fees, and expenses incurred by the Manager in the 
performance of its duties under the management agreement. In addition, the Manager, on 
behalf of the Redevelopment Authority, pays amounts due to the trustee. Effective February 
2009, Creekside Investors, L.P. submitted a Parking Assignment Agreement to the 
Redevelopment Authority since Creekside Investors, L.P. dissolved. The assignment is to 
Susquehanna Commerce Center Condominium Association, Inc. The management agreement 

56 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

term ends January 1, 2016 or such earlier time as mutually agreeable to both the Manager and 
the Redevelopment Authority. 

The Bonds initially bear interest at a variable rate, determined by the Remarketing Agent 
(Agent). The rate is based on a minimum rate that, in the judgment of the Agent, taking into 
account prevailing market conditions, would enable the Agent to sell all of the Bonds on the 
adjustment date at a price equal to the principal plus accrued interest. The Issuer may from 
time to time, with written consent of the Credit Facility Provider, change the interest rate on 
the Bonds from a variable to a fixed rate over one or more consecutive fixed rate periods. 

The Redevelopment Authority bonds payable at December 31, 2011 are comprised of the 
following individual bond issue: 

Series 

2002 Revenue Bonds 

Issue 
Amount 

$ 3,725,000 

Maturity 

Thru 2027 

Interest 
Rates 

Variable (0.20% at 

Amount 
Outstanding 

December 31, 2011) $ 2,960,000 

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the Redevelopment 
Authority under the 2002 Revenue Bonds using the 0.20% interest rate in effect at December 
31, 2011 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest 

2012 $ 115,000 $ 5,872 
2013 120,000 5,640 
2014 130,000 5,396 
2015 135,000 5,134 
2016 145,000 4,860 

2017-2021 875,000 19,485 
2022-2026 1,160,000 9,547 

2027 280,000 443 
$ 2,960,000 $ 56,377 
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General Authority Series of 2008 Promissory Note 

In 2008, the General Authority issued the Series of 2008 Promissory Note in the amount of 
$5,000,000, the proceeds of which are to be used to finance the renovation to the Market Street 
Garage, along with improvements to the General Authority's other assets. The loan is interest­
only for three years during the draw-down period, followed by seventeen years of 
amortization, maturing December 23, 2028. Quarterly payment of interest-only is due during 
the draw-down period. Upon amortization, quarterly interest and semi-annual principal will 
be required. At December 31, 2011, the General Authority had fully drawn-down the Series 
of2008 Promissory Note. 

Interest is payable at an initial rate of4.65% per annum until December 15, 2015. Thereafter, 
the rate changes to 75% of the Bank's prime rate as in effect from time to time, but in no event 
less than 2.75% or above 12% per annum, and may adjust as often as daily, provided that the 
General Authority may elect to pay interest at a fixed rate offered by the Bank for such 
additional term or terms as the General Authority and the Bank may agree. 

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the General Authority 
under the Promissory Note using the fixed !"ate in effect at December 31,2011 are as follows: 

Years Ending 

Decem bel' 31 , Principal Interest 

2012 $ 294,118 $ 168,187 
2013 294,118 212,808 
2014 294,118 199,078 
2015 294,118 185,349 
2016 294,118 171,619 

2017-2021 1,470,590 652,154 

2022-2026 1,470,590 308,913 
2027-2028 588,230 27,459 

$ 5,000,000 $ 1,925,567 

14. REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY LINE OF CREDIT 

In November 2006, the Redevelopment Authority entered into a $5.5 million non-revolving 
line of credit agreement with a local bank through November 2009. In March 2008, a loan 
modification agreement was approved to extend the line of credit up to $7 million. Fixed 
interest of 6.4% was payable monthly. On December 21,2009, a loan modification agreement 
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was approved to extend the maturity date of the line of credit to December 5, 2012 and to 
reduce the interest rate to 5.4%, commencing the day after the bank receives a payment of no 
less than $1 million from the RACP grant proceeds. Such a payment was received in October 
2010, in the amount of$2,456,873. The line of credit has been paying the expenses associated 
with the Redevelopment Authority's RACP grant funded by the Commonwealth. It is the 
Redevelopment Authority's intention to use the reimbUl"sement fi'om the RACP grant to pay 
the outstanding balance on the line of credit. As of December 31, 2011, the balance 
outstanding on the line of credit was $3,424,135. 

On January 16, 2009, the Redevelopment Authority entered into a $750,000 revolving line of 
credit agreement with a local bank through June 30, 2010. In June 2010, a modification 
agreement was approved, which extended the maturity date to June 30, 20 II. During 20 II, the 
local bank allowed an extension of the maturity date, although no modification agreements 
were officially approved by the bank. Variable interest of prime plus 0.50%, not to exceed 
5.75%, is payable monthly. The line of credit has been paying for expenses associated with 
construction costs relative to the environmental remediation of the Northwest Triangle Project. 
The amount drawn shall never exceed the amount remaining under the Redevelopment 
Authority's $1,050,000 Growing Greener II Grant (Growing Greener), funded by the 
Commonwealth. As of December 31, 201 I, there was an outstanding balance of $38,577 on 
the line of credit. 

The Redevelopment Authority's line of credit activity for the year ended December 31,2011 
was as follows: 

Beginning of End of 
Year Issued Redeemed Year 

RACP Line of Credit $ 4,470,397 $ 72,727 $ (1,118,989) $ 3,424,135 

Growing Greener Line of Credit 232,404 (193,827) 38,577 

Total $ 4,470,397 $ 305,131 $ (1,312,816) $ 3,462,712 

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS) 

Description of the Plans 

The City maintains single-employer defined benefit plans (Plans) for Officers and Employees, 
Police, and Paid Firefighters, which are accounted for as pension trust funds. Pmticipation in 
the plans is a required condition of employment for all regular, full-time employees, except 
laborers paid on a per diem basis. The plans do not issue separate financial statements. 
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The plans are governed by the Third Class City Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, 
as amended. At January I, 20 II, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, employees 
covered under the City's pension plans consisted of: 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
currently receiving benefits 

Terminated employees entitled to 
deferred benefits 

Active employees: 
Vested 
Partially vested 

Total 

Officers and 
Employees 

Pension Plan 

89 

27 

99 
92 

307 

Police Pension 
Plan 

III 

9 

54 
45 

219 

Paid Firefighters 
Pension Plan 

77 

14 
53 

144 

Benefits for all three plans vary depending on specific agreements with each group of 
employees. The Police are eligible for normal retirement at age 50 and after completion of 20 
years and six months of service. Paid Firefighters are eligible for normal retirement at age 50, 
after completion of 20 years of service if hired before January I, 1988, or after completion of 
20 years and 6 months of service if hired on or after January I, 1988. Officers and Employees 
are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, after completion of 20 years of service if hired 
before January I, 1978, or completion of 5 years of service if hired on or after January I, 
1978, or after completion of 40 years of service, regardless of age. 

Paid firefighters hired prior to January I, 1988 receive a monthly pension increase equal to 
50% of the dollar increase granted to active firemen of the highest pay grade. The police 
receive a monthly pension increase equal to 50% of the dollar increase granted to active 
patrolmen of the highest pay grade to all eligible members. For certain firefighters pension 
plan members and police pension plan members retired between January I, 2003 and January 
15,2003, the annual pension increase is equal to 4%. 

Required employee contributions for Police are 5% of salary plus $1 per month. Paid 
Firefighters contributions are 5% of salary plus $1 per month if hired prior to January I, 1988, 
5% of salary ifhired on or after January I, 1988, and 6% of salary ifhired on or after January 
I, 2007. Officers and Employees contributions are 2% plus 112% of salary for service 
increment (if opted) if hired before January I, 1978, or 2% of salary if hired on or after 
January 1,1978. 
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Effective with the 1985 plan year, the City has participated in Level III of the Act 205 
Recovery Program, a Commonwealth of Pennsylvania program that reduces contribution 
requirements and subsidizes underfunded pension plans. Eligibility to participate in Level III 
is based on the distress determination of the City as provided by the Public Employee 
Retirement Study Commission based on the procedures specified in Chapter 5 of Act 205. The 
Commission has determined the City to be a severely distressed municipality. 

In 2011, state aid of $3,016,476 was deposited into the Debt Service Fund to pay the debt 
service payments for the 1995 general obligation bonds issued to help fund the pension plan. 
Pages 80 to 82 of this report provide six-year historical trend information on the contributions 
to the pension plans as well as an analysis of funding progress. 
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Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost 

The City establishes and amends the contribution requirements of both the plan members and 
the City. Costs of administering the plans are funded by the plans. The City's annual pension 
cost for the current year and related information for each plan is as follows: 

Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Pension Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Annual pension cost $ 759,447 $ 3,384,038 $ 1,715,778 
Contributions made by 

December 31, 2011 

Annual pension cost due at 
December 31, 2011 $ 759,447 $ 3,384,038 $ 1,715,778 

Due from City of York: 
Portion of20 II minimum 

municipal obligation 
funded subsequent to 
December 31, 2011 $ 759,447 $ 3,384,038 $ 1,715,778 

Accumulated interest on 
minimum municipal obligation 
funded subsequent 
to December 31, 2011 63,034 280,873 142,409 

Employee withholding not 
deposited in trust as of 
December 31,2011 5,857 12,561 6,847 

Total due from City of York as 
of December 31,2011 $ 828,338 $ 3,677,472 $ 1,865,034 
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Officers and 
Employees Police Pension Paid Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Actuarial valuation date 11112011 111/20 II 111/2011 
Actuarial cost method EntlY age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal 

Level dollar 
Level dollar Level dollar 

closed, Level 
closed, Level closed, Level 

percentage of 
percentage of percen tage 0 f 

Amortization method 
projected payroll 

projected payroll projected payroll 
for COLA for COLA 

for Initial Base 
amendment amendment 

Closed 
closed closed 

Remaining amortization 
19 years 24 years 24 years 

period 

Five year Five year 
Five year 
smoothed 

smoothed smoothed method 
method with the 

method with the with the value of 
value of assets at 

Asset valuation method 
value of assets at assets at a 

a maximum of 
a maximum of maximum of 

130% and a 
130% and a 130% and a 

minimum of 
minimum 0[70% minimum 0[70% 

70% of market 
of market value of market value 

value 
Actuarial assumptions: 
Investment rate of return 8% 8% 8% 
Projected salary increases 
includes inflation 5% 5% 5% 

Cost of living adjustment 5% 5% 
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Three-year trend information is as follows: 

Annual Percentage 
Year Pension Cost ofAPC 

Ended (APC) contributed 

Officers and 2011 $ 759,447 100% 
Employees Pension 2010 376,684 100% 

Plan 2009 344,088 100% 

Police Pension Plan 2011 $ 3,384,038 100% 
2010 3,244,828 100% 
2009 3,120,389 100% 

Paid Firefighters 2011 $ 1,715,778 100% 
Pension Plan 2010 1,805,386 100% 

2009 1,785,031 100% 

Funding Status and Schedule of Funding PI'ogress: 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

$ 

$ 

$ 

The schedules offunding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accmed AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (e ) «b-a)/e) 

Officc."s and Employees Pension Plan: 

111/2011 $ 21,366,032 $ 24,567,150 $ 3,20 1,118 87.0% $ 7,600,411 42.1% 

Police Pension Plan: 

111/2011 $ 42,073,130 $ 76,631,555 $ 34,558,425 54.9% $ 6,250,388 552.9% 

Paid Firefighters Pension Plan: 

11112011 $ 26,159,700 $ 43,362,544 $ 17,202,844 60.3% $ 3,869,316 444.6% 
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The City was utilizing the Level III provision allowing for delayed implementation of the 
actuarial funding standards specified in Act 205 over a period not to exceed 15 years. In 1995, 
it was anticipated that the proceeds from the City's issuance of $32 million in pension bonds 
would fully fund each of the plans. The State requires the City to continue calculating its 
minimum municipal obligation for Act 205 purposes exclusive of the bond proceeds. This 
minimum municipal obligation will be used as a factor in determining the amount of State 
pension aid the City is entitled to under Act 205. Act 205 provides that the funding of 
unfunded pension liabilities with bond proceeds will not reduce the State pension aid that 
would be due the City, absent such fi.mding. State aid has been pledged as security for the 
debt service on the pension bonds. 

Pension assets consist primarily of money market funds, mutual funds, and common stocks. 

Police and Paid Firefighters Pensions Litigation 

In 1992, grievances were filed by the police union and firefighters' union claiming the City 
violated the collective bargaining agreements by changing the method of calculating the cost 
of living pension benefits in 1972. These claims went to arbitration and, in 1994, the arbitrator 
ruled that the method of calculating the cost of living pension benefit be revised to the method 
used before it was unlawfully changed retroactive to 1992. 

The revisions to each of the plans as provided by the aforementioned arbitrator's awards 
(awards) required the City to contribute an additional $3.7 million for ten years beginning in 
1996 and an additional $1.9 million for ten years beginning in 2006, as determined by the 
City'S actuaries, to fully fund the pensions in accordance with Level III of the Act 205 
Recovery Program. However, the City had received authorization from the Public Employee 
Retirement Commission to suspend these payments as long as the dispute continued in 
litigation or negotiation. 

In May 2004, the City received notification that they were required to fully reflect all of the 
pension benefits provided under the 1994 arbitration awards in the Act 205 Actuarial 
Valuation Reports prepared as of January I, 2005, in order to comply with the actuarial 
reporting and funding standards mandated under Act 205. The City has been advised by their 
actuary that the unfunded accrued liability related to the arbitration award is $26.5 million as 
of the valuation date of January 1,2005. 

The City researched various funding methods to meet the added cost of the annual minimum 
municipal obligation including an amendment to Act 205 allowing for a thirty year level 
percentage amortization schedule using a five percent annual increase or a taxable 30 year 
bond issue. The City sought the assistance of the state legislature to enact an amendment to 
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Act 205 to allow for the extended amortization and, on November 30, 2004, Act 200 of 2004 
was signed into law allowing for the extended amortization. 

In 2006, the City commenced funding the obligation pursuant to the extended 30 year 
amortization period. Under the extended amortization period, the annual minimum municipal 
obligation related to the pension arbitration increased approximately $1.3 million, excluding 
annual normal costs, for the year ended December 3 I, 2006. The relative increase in 
minimum municipal obligation will continue to increase 5% each year over the 30-year 
amortization period. The annual minimum municipal obligation for the Fire and Police 
Pension funds are appropriated in the City's General Fund in the police and fire departments. 

The combining information for the plans is as follows: 

Officers and Paid 

Employees Police Pension Firefighters 
Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Investments, at fair value $ 18,349,542 $ 35,056,058 $ 21,632,706 

Due from City of York 828,338 3,677,472 1,865,034 

Total assets $ 19,177,880 $ 38,733,530 $ 23,497,740 

Net assets $ 19,177,880 $ 38,733,530 $ 23,497,740 
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Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Pension Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Additions: 
Contributions: 
Employee contributions $ 152,348 $ 333,134 $ 190,875 
Employer contributions 759,447 3,384,038 1,715,778 

Total contributions 911,795 3,717,172 1,906,653 

Investment income: 
Interest and dividend income 299,836 716,207 413,883 
Net depreciation of investments (674,230) (1,284,461 ) (793,284) 

(374,394) (568,254) (379,401) 
Less investment expenses (86,021 ) (155,621 ) (97,617) 

Net investment income (loss) (460,415) (723,875) (477,018) 

Total additions 451,380 2,993,297 1,429,635 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 1,072,655 3,237,691 2,157,484 

Total deductions 1,072,655 3,237,691 2,157,484 

Change in net assets (621,275) (244,394) (727,849) 

Net assets, beginning of year 19,799,155 38,977,924 24,225,589 

Net assets, end of year $ 19,177,880 $ 38,733,530 $ 23,497,740 

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Descriptions 

In addition to the retirement benetits described in Note 15, the City provides single-employer 
health care benefits for all retired employees and their spouses under the various union 
contracts and City policy for non-organized employees. These benefit provisions and all other 
requirements are established under the various union contracts and City policy for non­
organized employees. The retired employees are required to pay monthly to the City, one-half 
of the actual cost subject to annual co-payment limitation established in each of the union 
contracts and by Council for non-organized employees. The plan does not issue separate 
financial statements. 
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Non-Organized Employees and Supervisory Personnel Plan, York Public Employee 
Association Plan, and Electrical Workers Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of age 60 and 
completion of 5 years of service or upon completion of 40 years of service, regardless of age. 
Benefits are also payable for members who suffer a permanent disability before age 55 after 
completion of 15 years of service. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare and has a $5,000 lifetime maximum. There are no 
prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits after age 65. Spouses are covered under the plan 
indefinitely. 

Police Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of age 50 and 
completion of 20 (or 20.5 if hired after January I, 1978) years of service. Benefits are also 
payable for members who suffer a permanent disability after completion of 15 years of 
service. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare. Spouses are covered under the plan indefinitely. 

Teamsters Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of combined age 
and service totaling 80 years. Benefits are also payable for members who suffer a permanent 
disability before age 55 after completion of 15 years of service. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare and has a $5,000 lifetime maximum. There are no 
prescription drug, dental and vision benefits after age 65. Spouses are covered under the plan 
indefinitely. 

Firefighters Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of age 50 and 
completion of20 (or 20.5 if hired after January 1,1988) years of service. Benefits are also 
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payable for members who suffer a permanent disability after completion of 15 years of 
service. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare. Prescription drug, dental, and vision coverage are 
available for the lifetime of the member or spouse. Spouses are covered under the plan 
indefinitely. 

The York Public Employee Association, Police, Teamsters, Electrical Workers, and 
Firefighter union labor contracts for the uniformed and nonuniformed employees establish the 
post-employment health care plan provisions. Such union contracts may be amended through 
future negotiations. The post-employment health care plan provisions for non-union 
employees are established by Council. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Costs 

The City's contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements through 
the Internal Service Fund. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the City's net cost of 
providing full health care benefits for retired employees was $2,420,013. Plan members 
receiving benefits contributed $167,159, through their contributions as required by the cost 
sharing provisions of the plans. 

Union labor contracts and City Council establish and amend the obligations of the plan 
members and the City to contribute to the plans. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. In order to maintain 
coverage, retirees must make the following annual contributions in accordance with the plans: 

Non-Organized Employees and Supervisory Personnel Plan - For retirees under the 
age of 65, the annual contributions are $700 for the retiree and $700 for 
spouses/dependents. For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are 
$103.32 for retirees and $103.32 for spouses/dependents .. 

York Public Employee Association Plan - For retirees under the age of 65, the annual 
contributions are $900 for the retiree and $700 for spouses/dependents. For retirees 
over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $103.32 for retirees and $103.32 for 
spouses/dependents. 
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Electrical Workers Plan - For retirees under the age of 65, the annual contributions are 
as follows: 

Spouses/ 
Date of Hire Date of Retirement Retirees Dependents 

Prior to 9/1108 Prior to 9/1/08 $ 750 $ 750 
Prior to 9/1 /08 9/1/08 - 12/31108 900 700 
Prior to 9/1/08 111109 - 12/31109 1,000 800 
Prior to 9/1108 1/1/10 - 12/31110 1,100 900 
Prior to 9/1/08 111111-12/31/11 1,200 1,000 
Prior to 9/1108 1/1/12 - 12/31/12 1,300 I, I 00 

9/1 /08 and later COBRA rate COBRA rate 

For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $103.32 for retirees and 
$103.32 for spouses/dependents. 

Police Plan - For all retirees, the annual contributions are as follows: 

Date of Retirement 
Prior to 111107 
7/1/07 and later 

Retirees 
$ 700 

I, I 00 

Spouses/ 
Dependents 
$ 700 

1,100 

Teamsters Plan - For retirees under the age of 65, the annual contributions are as 
follows: 

Spouses/ 
Date on-lire Date of Retirement Retirees Dependents 

Prior to 7/25/08 Prior to 12/31108 $ 900 $ 700 
Prior to 7/25/08 111109 - 12/31109 1,000 800 
Prior to 7/25/08 1/1/10 -12/31/10 I, I 00 900 
Prior to 7/25/08 111 II I - 12/31/11 1,200 1,000 
Prior to 7/25/08 1/1/12 - 12/31/12 1,300 1,100 
7/25/08 and later COBRA rate COBRA rate 

For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $ I 03.32 for retirees and 
$ 103.32 for spouses/dependents. 
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Firefighters Plan - For retirees under the age of 65 who retired prior to January I, 
2007, the annual contributions are $700 for the retiree and $700 for 
spouses/dependents. For retirees under the age of65 who retired on or after January 1, 
2007, the annual contributions for the retiree and spouse are determined at the time of 
retirement. An independent audit will be performed each year to determine the average 
cost per participant incurred in the plan and the third previous year. The retiree and 
spouse will be responsible to contribute 25% of the cost determined in the audit. The 
contribution for the retiree and spouse determined at the time of retirement can be no 
more than 10% higher than the contribution determined for a participant that retired in 
the previous year. 

For all retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $405.36 for retirees and 
$469.44 for spouses/dependents. 

The City's annual OPEB costs (expense) for the plan is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially. The ARC represents a 
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year 
and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to 
exceed thitty years. 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the ARC are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of 
funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and 
include the types of benefits provided at the time of the valuation and on the historical pattern 
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculation. The projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes do 
not explicitly incorporate the potential effects oflegal or contractual funding limitations on the 
pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future. 
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Information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Actuarial valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization period 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Interest rate 

Salary increases 

Medical inflation 

111/2009 

Entry age normal, level dollar 

30 years, open period 

4.5% 

5% per year 

8% in 2009, decreasing by 0.5% 
per year to to 5.5% in 2014; 

rates gradually decrease from 
5.3% in 2015 to 4.2% in 2099 
and later based on the Society 

of Actuaries Long-Run Medical 
Cost Trend Model 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The City's annual OPEB costs and net OPEB obligations to the plan for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 were as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Annual required contribution $ 5,236,813 $ 107,789 $ 5,344,602 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 426,897 8,786 435,683 
Adjustment to annual required 
contribution (582,397) (11,987) (594,384) 

Annual OPEB Cost 5,081,313 104,588 5,185,90 I 
Contribution made (2,371,207) (48,806) (2,420,013) 

Change in Net OPEB obligation 2,710,106 55,782 2,765,888 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning 9,333,260 241,134 9,574,394 

Net OPEB obligation, ending $ 12,043,366 $ 296,916 $ 12,340,282 
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Three-Year Trend Information 

Percentage of 
AnnualOPEB AOC NetOPEB 

Year Cost (AOC) Contributed Obligation 

2011 $ 5,185,901 46.67% $ 12,340,282 
2010 5,243,228 35.35% 9,574,394 
2009 4,756,307 38.44% 6,184,618 

Funded Status and Schedule of Funding Progress 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial UAAL as a 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage 
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered 

Valuation Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) «b-a)/c) 

111/2009 $ $ 52.664.914 $ 52.664,914 0.00% $17,256,761 305.18% 

17. SELF-INSURANCE HEALTH INSURANCE 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to major medical self-insurance. The City 
has a stop/loss agreement with an insurance company which covers all individual claim 
amounts exceeding $150,000 up to a maximum of $1,000,000. Premiums are paid into the 
internal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and 
administrative costs of the program. 

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred 
but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of recent claim 
settlement trends as determined by the City's independent third-party administrator. 
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Changes in the balances of claims liability (net of excess insurance) during the past three years 
ended December 31, 2011 were as follows: 

Beginning of Current Year Claims End of 
Year and Changes in Claim Year 

Liability Estimates Payments Liability 

2010 $ 437,636 $ 6,299,592 $ 6,338,476 $ 398,752 
2011 398,752 7,824,885 7,792,762 430,875 

In addition, the City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; error, and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These 
risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled 
claims from these risks did not exceed commercial insurance coverage during the years ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 with the exception of the pension litigation disclosed in 
Note 15. 

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Leases 

On May 27, 1981, the City entered into a twenty-year lease, cancelable with six months notice, 
for the rental of office space. This lease was renewed in May 2002 through May 2007. 
Currently, office spaces are leased on a month-to-month basis with monthly payments of 
$12,164. Rent expenditures under this agreement totaled $145,968 for the year ended 
December 31,2011. This lease may be increased annually based on the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI). 

The City also has several leases for vehicles used in City operations. The future minimum 
commitments for these leases are not material to the City's operations. 

The City has also entered into several noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. 
The future minimum commitmcnts for these leases are not material to the City'S operations. 

Gl'llnts 

Grants received are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal 
government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed 
by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if 
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any, to be immaterial. However, the Redevelopment Authority has used its best estimate to 
report an allowance based on currently known facts and circumstances. 

Contract Commitment 

During 2008, the Sewer Authority began upgrading projects to the waste water treatment 
plant. As a result, the Sewer Authority entered into contracts with several construction 
contractors totaling $37,858,507. At December 31, 2011, $1,853,798 was included in 
accounts payable. The commitment remaining on the contracts at December 31, 20 II was 
$1,955,956. 

Redevelopment Authority 

During 2007, the Redevelopment Authority assumed and acquired the title of four properties 
and an additional block of properties in 2008, which required environmental remediation. 
These properties were acquired by the Redevelopment Authority to be sold for residential use. 
In order to sell the properties with a clean title, the Redevelopment Authority was required to 
remediate the properties. 

During 2011, the third and final stage of the environmental remediation process was 
completed, reSUlting in no ending balance ofthe contamination liability at December 31,2011. 
The Redevelopment Authority did not receive insurance recoveries during the year ended 
December 31, 20 I I. 

General Authority 

During October 2007, the General Authority's Board of Directors adopted a resolution to 
contribute $500,000 to the Northwest Triangle Initiative, one of the City's economic 
development projects, which is being significantly funded through Redevelopment Assistance 
Capital Program Grant (RACP) to the Redevelopment Authority. Under the RACP 
application, $500,000 of local match is for the acquisition, design, related soft costs, and/or 
construction of parking related controls and/or facilities within the Northwest Triangle. The 
General Authority, in its sole discretion, will determine monthly rental rates and special event 
parking fees and will be responsible for staffing and maintenance of the digital meters and/or 
lot(s) or other parking facilities after title is conveyed to it; the General Authority and the 
Redevelopment Authority agree that the $500,000 contribution may also be in the way of 
repairs, renovations, or expansions of existing General Authority-owned facilities, or 
improvements to or replacement of such facilities. This contribution is contingent on the 
continuation of the Northwest Triangle Initiative. The General Authority had expended 
approximately $314,446 as of December 31, 20 II towards the Northwest Triangle Initiative. 
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During 2011, the General Authority entered into contracts with construction contractors 
totaling $696,355 for the rehabilitation of the King Street Parking Garage. At December 31, 
2011, $413,969 was included in accounts payable. The remaining commitment on these 
contracts at December 31, 2011 was $24,370. 

19. MANAGEMENT'S AGREEMENT WITH THE GENERAL AUTHORITY 

The City has entered into a management and an administration agreement with the General 
Authority to operate, manage, and administer the General Authority's parking system. The 
management agreement requires that the General Authority pay the City a management fee to 
the General Fund in twelve equal installments. The City incurred $743,992 in operating 
expenses and received $962,843 in fees under the management agreement in 20 II. The City 
received $141,000 in administrative fees under an administration agreement in 2011. A 
receivable of $113,293 is recorded in the General Fund for fees that were earned under these 
agreements, but unpaid at December 31, 2011. 

20. LITIGATION 

The City is a party to numerous lawsuits that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. It 
is the opinion of management, as advised by legal counsel, that these suits will not have a 
material effect on the financial statements of the City, with the exception of the pension 
litigation discussed in Note 15. 

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In January of 2012, the City borrowed $9,480,000 in the form of a Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Note, Series of2012, bearing interest at an annual rate of 4.81 %. 

In February of 2013, the City borrowed $5,700,000 in the form of a Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Note, Series of2013, bearing interest at an annual rate of 0.95% until June 2013, 
and thereafter at a variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.75%. 

In October of2012, the Redevelopment Authority borrowed $2,450,000 in the form ofa non­
revolving time loan, for a period of 12 months, with the option to extend for one additional 12-
month period, bearing interest at an annual rate of 3.75%, to be repaid with RACP grant 
funding. The loan proceeds were utilized to payoff the original non-revolving line of credit 
agreement entered in November 2006 to finance the Northwest Triangle Project, as indicated 
in Note 14. 
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In May of 20 12, the Redevelopment Authority entered into a new promissory note agreement 
whereby the Redevelopment Authority borrowed $500,000 with interest at 5% per annum, 
with interest only paid annually until the maturity date in 2018, at which time the entire 
$500,000 is due. The note payable is secured by a pledge of installment payments of principal 
and interest for which the Redevelopment Authority is owed under the 2009 HRA loan, as 
referenced in Note 7. 

22. RESTATEMENT 

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Redevelopment Authority determined that 
grant revenue and loans receivable were understated at December 31, 2010 by $500,000. The 
beginning of year Redevelopment Authority net assets have been increased from ($1,926,660) 
to ($1,426,660). Had the loans receivable been properly stated, the change in net assets for the 
Redevelopment Authority would have been ($1,901,881) for the year ended December 31, 
2010, $500,000 more than originally reported. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget ~ 

Original Final Positive Positive 
Buds:ct BUdf.!iet (Nes:ative) Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Tuxes $ 20,171,572 $ 20,171,572 $ $ 20,135,399 $ (36,173) 
Licenses and permits 1,593,400 1,593,400 1,642,890 49,490 
Fines and forfeits 2,063,400 2,063,400 1,918,957 ( 144,443) 
Grants and contributions 6,901,320 7,199,605 298,285 1,667,681 (5,531,924) 
Charges for services 8,969,405 8,999,405 30,000 8,928,729 (70,676) 
Interest 20,000 20,000 210 (19,790) 
Miscellaneous 52,350 52,350 79,423 27,073 

Total revenues 39,771,447 40,099,732 328,285 34,373,289 (5,726,443) 

Expenditures: 
General government 2,088,709 1,967,689 121,020 1,875,290 92,399 
Sanitation 3,202,765 3,070,073 132,692 3,074,541 (4,468) 
Public safety 27,040,473 27,738,847 (698,374) 26,547,070 1,191,777 
Highways and streets 607,848 603,935 3,913 603,327 608 
Public works 2,488,180 2,724,188 (236,008) 2,720,867 3,321 
Community development 
and planning 2,405,441 2,360,261 45,180 2,146,151 214,110 

Other departments and 
programs 201,707 193,805 7,902 193,519 286 

Total expenditures 38,035,123 38,658,798 (623,675) 37,160,765 1,498,033 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures 1,736,324 1,440,934 (295,390) (2,787,476) (4,228,410) 

Other financing 
sources (uses): 

Transfers in 2,677,509 2,770,002 92,493 2,403,536 (366,466) 
Transfers out (1,026,518) (814,728) 211,790 (680,664) 134,064 

Total other tinancing 
sources (uses) 1,650,991 1,955,274 304,283 1,722,872 (232,402) 

Net change in fund 
balance $ 3,387,315 $ 3,396,208 $ 8,893 $ (1,064,604) $ (4,460,812) 
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1. BUDGETARY DATA 

The City's budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 

2. BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISONS 

The General Fund's budget comparison is presented in the Required Supplementary 
Information section. The budgeted nonmajor funds and major debt service fund budget 
comparisons are presented in the combining section. 

3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

Sanitation 
Appropriation 
$ 3,070,073 

Expenditure 
$ 3,074,541 

Funds sufficient to provide for the excess expenditures were made available from other 
functions within the fund. 
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The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions n'om the City for the Officers' 
and Employees' Pension Plan: 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Entry Age Ovcrfunded 
Value of Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) 
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (alb) 

1/1/02 $ 17,326,047 $ 15,472,339 $ 1,853,708 112.0% $ 
1/1/03 17583,625 15,879,934 1,703,691 110.7% 
1/1105 19,138,231 17,848,189 1,290,042 107.2% 
1/1107 21,302,613 19,688,657 1,613,956 108.2% 
111/09 19,756,874 22,301,395 (1) (2,544,521 ) 88.6% 
111/11 21,366,032 24,567,150 (3,201,118) 87.0% 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 

Annual Contributions 
Required from 

Calendar Year Contribution Emelol:cr 

2006 $ 291,572 $ 291,572 
2007 331,360 331,360 
2008 335,270 335,270 
2009 344,088 344,088 
2010 376,684 376,684 
2011 (2) 759,447 759,447 

Covered 
])ayroll 

(e) 

6,383,990 
6,186,006 
6,386,560 
6,238,323 
7,387,463 
7,600,411 

Percentage 
Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Ovel"funded 
(Unfunded) 
AALasa % 
of Covered 

Payroll 
«a-b)/e) 

29.0% 
27.5% 
20.2% 
25.9% 

(34.4%) 
(42.1%) 

(I) The actuarial accrued liability incrense on the Jnnuary 1,2009 nctuarial vnluation is due to n change in the asset valuation method 
from the market value method to the five-yenr smoothing method. 

(2) $759,447 was funded in 2012: amount of the total requked contribution was accrued as of December 31,2011. 
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The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from the City for the Police 
Pension Plan: 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actual'ia) Entry Age Ovcrfundcd 
Value of Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) 
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date (a) (bl (a-b) (a/bl 

1/1/02 $ 32,442,377 $ 37,407,381 $ (4,965,004) 86.7% 
1/1/03 32,332,762 39,534,359 (7,201,597) 81.8% 
1/1/05 33,350,980 60,516,086 (1) (27,165,106) 55.1% 
1/1/07 36,900,720 64,763,758 (27,863,038) 57.0% 
1/1/09 36,453,921 71,734,278 (2) (35,280,357) 50,8% 
1/1/11 42,073,130 76,631,555 (34,558,425) 54.9% 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 
Annual Contributions 

Required from 
Calendar Year Contribution Em(!lol:cr 

2006 $ 2,949,964 $ 2,949,964 
2007 2,988,309 2,988,309 
2008 (3) 3,052,400 3,052,400 
2009 (4) 3,120,389 3,120,389 
2010 (5) 3,244,828 3,244,828 
2011 (6) 3,384,038 3,384,038 

Covered 
J>aymll 

(el 

$ 5,393,437 
5,304,211 
5,143,232 
5,324,403 
6,218,166 
6,250,388 

Percentage 
Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Ovcl'fundcd 
(Unfunded) 
AALas a % 
of Covered 

Payroll 
«a-b)/e) 

(92.1%) 
(135.8%) 
(528.2%) 
(523.3%) 
(567.4%) 
(552.9%) 

(1) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January 1,2005 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the postl·etirement 
cost of living benefit. 

(2) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January I, 2009 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the asset valuation method 
from the market value method to the five-year smoothing method. 

(3) $1,066,251 was funded as of December 31, 2008 and $1,986,149 was funded in 2009; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 3 L 2008. 

(4) $417,160 was funded as of December 31, 2009 and $2,703,229 was funded in 2010; amount of the total requi!·cd contribution 
was accrued as of December 31, 2009. 

(5) $400,480 was funded as of December 31,2010 and ,~2,844,348 was funded in 2011; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31,20 I O. 

(6) $3,095,191 was funded in 2012 and $288,847 was funded in 2013; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as 
of December 31, 2011. 
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The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from the City for the Paid 
Firefighters Pension Plan. 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Enh-y Age Overfundcd 
Value of Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) 
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (alb) 

111102 $ 22,713,989 $ 24,413,735 $ (1,699,746) 93.0% 
111103 22,160,652 25,337,706 (3,177,054) 87.5% 
111105 22,436,006 38,117,710 (I) (15,681,704) 58.9% 
111/07 24,114,327 40,781,209 (16,666,882) 59.1% 
111109 23,246,959 42,684,783 (2) (19,437,824) 54.5% 
111111 26,159,700 43,362,544 (17,202,844) 60.3% 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 
Annual Contributions 

Rcquil'cd from 
Calendar Y cal' Contribution Em~loxcr 

2006 $ 1,621,527 $ 1,621,527 
2007 1,641,164 1,641,164 
2008 (3) 1,681,387 1,681,387 
2009 (4) 1,785,031 1,785,031 
2010 (5) 1,805,386 1,805,386 
2011 (6) 1,715,778 1,715,778 

Covered 
l)aYl'oli 

(c) 

$ 3,515,959 
3,398,215 
3,496,489 
3,634,509 
3,800,645 
3,869,316 

l)ercentage 
Conh'ibuted 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Ovedundcd 
(Unfunded) 
AALas a % 
of Covered 

])aYI'oli 
«a-b)/e) 

(48.3%) 
(93.5%) 

(448.5%) 
(458.6%) 
(511.4%) 
(444.6%) 

(1) The actuarial accrued liobility increase on the January 1,2005 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the postretirement 
cost of living benefit. 

(2) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January 1,2009 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the asset valuation method 
from the market value method to the five-year smoothing method. 

(3) $598,479 was funded as of December 31, 2008 and $1,082,908 was funded in 2009; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31, 2008. 

(4) $238,752 was funded as of Dee ember 31,2009 and $1,546,279 was funded in 2010; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31,2009. 

(5) $222,836 was funded as of December 31, 20 I 0 and $1,582,550 was fllnded in 2011; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31, 2010. 

(6) $1,538,377 was funded in 2012 and $177,401 was funded in 2013; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as 
of December 31, 2011. 
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Schedule of Funding })l'ogress 

Actual"ial 
Accrued 

Value of Liability (AAL) Unfunded Covel'cd 
Actuarial Assets - Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll 

Valuation Datc (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (e) 

111107 $ $ 48,995,002 $ 48,995,002 0.00% $ 15,047,604 
1/1/09 52,664,914 52,664,914 0.00% 17,256,761 

Schedule of Contributions from the Emplo)'cr 

Annual 
Required PCl'centage 

Calendar Year Contribution Contributed 

2008 $ 4,808,544 23.65% 
2009 4,808,544 38.02% 
2010 5,344,602 34.68% 
2011 5,344,602 45.28% 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Community Community 
Recreation Development Development 

Fund Loan Fund Block Grant 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ $ 110,706 $ 176,125 
Receivables: 

Loans (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $625,559 in Community 
Development Block Grant Fund, 
$106,213 in Section 108 Fund, and 
$662,416 in HOME Fund) 748,989 891,735 

Taxes (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $11 0,629 in recreation) 120,132 

Accounts, notes, and grants 9,999 18,392 
Due from other funds 60,000 
Due from component unit 

Total assets $ 190,131 $ 859,695 $ 1,086,252 

Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits} 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accnled expenses $ 44,749 $ 121 $ 94,517 
Accnlcd wages payable 11,235 
Due to other funds 952,508 100,000 
Due to other governments 8,902 
Deferred revenues 110,629 748,989 891,735 

Total liabilities 1,119,121 758,012 1,086,252 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Restricted for: 

Public works 
Community development 101,683 

Unassigned (928,990) 

Total fund balances (deficits) (928,990) 101,683 

Total liabilities and fund balances 
(deficits) $ 190,131 $ 859,695 $ 1,086,252 
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Conduit Section 108 
Fund Fund 

$ 123,441 $ 

601,877 

29,809 

$ 153,250 $ 601,878 

$ 142,423 $ 

708 
8,419 

771 601,878 

152,321 601,878 

929 

929 

$ 153,250 $ 601,878 



Seecial Revenue Total 
Section 108- State Special State Grant Nonmajor 
Rebuild York Liquid Fuels Projects HOME Health Weyer Governmental 

Fund Tax Fund Fund Fund Funds Tnlst Funds 

$ 90,493 $ (73,815) $ 570,620 $ 70,429 $ (123,596) $ 8,104 $ 952,508 

353,692 2,596,293 

120,132 
17,115 539 179,603 255,457 

60,000 
32,184 32,184 

$ 90,493 $ (73,815) $ 619,919 $ 424,660 $ 56,007 $ 8,104 $ 4,016,574 

$ 87,220 $ 264,064 $ 181,382 $ 539 $ 15,539 $ 814 $ 831,368 
1,051 14,201 1,142 27,629 

332,901 1,386,117 
70,429 87,750 

72,399 353,692 2,780,093 

87,220 265,115 253,781 424,660 362,641 1,956 5,112,957 

3,273 366,138 369,411 
6,148 108,760 

(338,930) (306,634) (1,574,554) 

3,273 (338,930) 366,138 (306,634) 6,148 (1,096,383) 

$ 90,493 $ (73,815) $ 619,919 $ 424,660 $ 56,007 $ 8,104 $ 4,016,574 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES (DEFICITS)" OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 I 

Community Community 
Recreation Development Development Conduit Section 108 

Fund Loan Fund Block Grant Fund Fund 
Revenues: 

Taxes $ 1,227,128 $ $ $ $ 
Grants and contributions 800 1,882,096 273,155 
Charges for services 510,897 41,651 
Loan repayments 264,719 
Interest 134 
Miscellaneous 51,712 

Total revenues 1,790,537 264,853 1,923,747 273,155 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 1,517,613 
Public safety 13,839 
Public works 
Community development and planning 5,954 1,207,716 220,845 
Other departments and programs 

Debt service: 
Principal retirements 240,000 
Interest 140,407 

Capital outlay 5,750 473,131 

Total expenditures 1,523,363 5,954 2,061,254 234,684 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 267,174 258,899 (137,507) 38,471 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 137,507 
Transfers out ( 166,483) (290,369) (50,674) 

Total other financing sources (uses) ( 166,483) (290,369) 137,507 (50,674) 

Net change in fund balances (deficits) 100,691 (31,470) (12,203) 

Fund balances (deficits) ~ beginning 
of year (1,029,681) 133,153 13,132 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ (928,990) $ 101,683 $ $ 929 $ 
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Seecial Revenue Total 
Section I 08 ~ State Spccial State Grant Nomnajor 
Rebuild York Liquid Fuels Projects HOME Health Weyer Governmental 

Fund Tax Fund Fund Fund Funds Tmst Funds 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,227,128 
765,463 525,990 781,536 1,700,491 122,313 6,051,844 

37,379 589,927 
264,719 

19 506 12 671 
4,877 101,321 64 157,974 

19 770,846 664,702 781,536 1,700,555 122,313 8,292,263 

270,995 270,995 
777,149 777,149 

59,776 1,577,389 
59,616 73,455 

43,824 20,436 64,260 
20,982 781,536 105,340 2,342,373 

1,914,125 1,914,125 

140,905 380,905 
14,879 155,286 

537,637 165,812 204,848 1,387,178 

581,461 1,098,745 636,653 781,536 1,914,125 105,340 8,943,115 

(581,442) (327,899) 28,049 (213,570) 16,973 (650,852) 

99,117 236,624 
(507,526) 

99,117 (270,902) 

(581,442) (327,899) 127,166 (213,570) 16,973 (921,754) 

584,715 (11,031) 238.972 (93,064) (10,825) (174,629) 

$ 3,273 $ (338,930) $ 366,138 $ $ (306,634) $ 6,148 $ (1,096,383) 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
DEBT SERVICE FUND - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget -

Original Final Positive Positive 
Budget Budget (Negative) Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 2,277,866 $ 2,277,866 $ $ 2,280,100 $ 2,234 
Grants and contributions 1,780,000 1,780,000 2,965,017 1,185,017 
Loan repayments 819,780 819,780 819,780 
Miscellaneous 184 184 

Total revenues 4,877,646 4,877,646 6,065,081 1,187,435 

Expenditllres: 
Current: 

General government 17,586 17,586 17,356 230 
Debt service 4,349,904 4,349,904 4,349,903 

Total expenditures 4,367,490 4,367,490 4,367,259 231 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues (under) 
expenditures 510,156 510,156 1,697,822 1,187,666 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 324,584 324,584 324,584 
Transfers out (621,013) (621,013) (621,011) 2 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (296,429) (296.429) (296,427) 2 

Net change in fund balance $ 213,727 $ 213,727 $ $ 1,401,395 $ 1,187,668 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES" 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND" 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20 II 

Variance Variance 
ofOriginai of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget -

Original Final Positive Positive 
Buds;et Buds;ct (Ne~ative) Actual (Negative~ 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 1,723,033 $ 1,773,033 $ 50,000 $ 2,034,542 $ 261,509 

Total revenues 1,723,033 1,773,033 50,000 2,034,542 261,509 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 335,753 (335,753) 
Debt service 11,875,256 (11,875,256) 
Capital outlay 7,976,875 8,807,168 (830,293) 6,038,787 2,768,381 

Total expenditures 7,976,875 8,807,168 (830,293) 18,249,796 (9,442,628) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures (6,253,842) (7,034,135) (780,293) (16,215,254) (9,181,119) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 4,900,000 5,522,949 622,949 20,085,574 14,562,625 
Transfers in 727,291 884,635 157,344 717,474 (167,161) 
Transfers out (3,689,984) (3,689,984) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 5,627,291 6,407,584 780,293 17,113,064 10,705,480 

Net change in fund balance $ (626,551 ) $ (626,551) $ $ 897,810 $ 1,524,361 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
RECREATION FUND - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget -

Original Final Positive Positive 
Buds;ct Budget (Negative) Actual (Ne~ativc) 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 1,229,291 $ 1,229,291 $ $ 1,227,128 $ (2,163) 
Grants and contributions 800 800 
Charges for services 609,130 609,130 510,897 (98,233) 
Miscellaneous 71,000 71,000 51,712 (19,288) 

Total revenues 1,909,421 1,909,421 1,790,537 (118,884) 

Expcl1(litllres: 
Current: 

Parks and recreation 1,622,600 1,626,143 (3,543) 1,517,613 108,530 
Capital outlay 5,750 (8,000) 

Total expenditures 1,622,600 1,626,143 P,543) 1,523,363 100,530 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues (under) 
expenditllres 286,821 283,278 P,543) 267,174 (16,104) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (193,533) (202,964) (9,431) (166,483) 36,481 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (193,533) (202,964) (9,431 ) (166,483) 36,481 

Net change in fund buiance $ 93,288 $ 80,314 $ (12,974) $ 100,691 $ 20,377 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND-
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget M 

Original Final Positive Positive 
Bud1l!ct BlId~et ~Ne!il!ative) Actual (Ne~ative) 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 2,678,206 $ 2,901,193 $ 222,987 $ 1,882,096 $ (1,019,097) 
Charges for services 41,651 41,651 

Total revenues 2,678,206 2,901,193 222,987 1,923,747 (977,446) 

Expenditlll'cs: 
Current: 

Community development 
and planning 2,070,698 2,274,824 (204,126) 1,207,716 1,067,108 

Debt sClvice 563,390 562,251 1,139 380,407 181,844 
Capital outlay 44,118 64,118 (20,000) 473,131 (409,013) 

Total expenditures 2,678,206 2,901,193 (222,987) 2,061,254 839,939 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (ullder) 
expenditures (137,507) (137,507) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 137,507 137,507 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 137,507 137,507 

Change in net assets $ ,~ $ ,~ $ 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATE LIQUID FUELS TAX FUND-
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget -

Original Final Positive Positive 
BudSiet Bud~et (Negative} Actual (Ne~ative) 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 744,887 $ 744,887 $ $ 765,463 $ 20,576 
Interest 2,000 2,000 506 (1,494) 
Miscellaneous 4,877 4,877 

Total revenues 746,887 746,887 770,846 23,959 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Highways and streets 735,809 779,337 (43,528) 777,149 2,188 
Debt service 160,000 155,983 4,017 155,784 199 
Capital outlay 165,812 165,812 165,812 

Total expenditures 1,061,621 1,101,132 (39,511) 1,098,745 2,387 

Net change in fund balance $ (314,734) $ (354,245) $ (39,511) $ (327,899) $ 26,346 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATE HEALTH GRANT FUND-
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

Variance Variance 
ofOriginai of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget - Budget ~ 

Original Final Positive Positive 
Buds;et Buds:ct (Ncs:ative} Actual (Nel,2;ative~ 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 1,999,293 $ 2,110,319 $ 111,026 $ 1,700,491 $ (409,828) 
Miscellaneous 6,500 6,500 64 (6,436) 

Total revenues 2,005,793 2,116,819 111,026 1,700,555 (416,264) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Other departments and 
programs 1,992,414 2,103,442 (111,028) 1,914,125 189,317 

Total expenditures 1,992,414 2,103,442 (111,028) 1,914,125 189,317 

Net change in fund balance $ 13,379 $ 13,377 $ (2] $ (213,570) $ (226,947) 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 201 I 

Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Firefighters 

Pension Pension Pension 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Assets 

Investments, at fair value $ 18,349,542 $ 35,056,058 $ 21,632,706 $ 75,038,306 
Due from City of York 828,338 3,677,472 1,865,034 6,370,844 

Total assets 19,177,880 38,733,530 23,497,740 81,409,150 

Net Assets 

Held in trust for pension benefits $ 19,177,880 $ 38,733,530 $ 23,497,740 $ 81,409,150 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - AGENCY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Fire 
Escrow 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents .$ 453,793 .$ 

Total assets 453,793 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 453,793 

Total liabilities $ 453,793 $ 
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Escrow 
Fund Total 

266,453 .$ 720,246 

266,453 720,246 

266,453 720,246 

266,453 $ 720,246 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Firefighters 

Pension Pension Pension 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

Employee contributions $ 152,348 $ 333,134 $ 190,875 $ 676,357 
Employer contributions 759,447 3,384,038 1,715,778 5,859,263 

Total contributions 911,795 3,717,172 1,906,653 6,535,620 

Investment income: 
Interest and dividend income 299,836 716,207 413,883 1,429,926 
Net depreciation of investments (674,230) (1,284,461) (793,284) (2,751,975) 

(374,394) (568,254) (379,401) (1,322,049) 

Less investment expenses (86,021) (155,621) (97,617) (339,259) 

Net investment income (loss) (460,415) (723,875) (477,018) (1,661,308) 

Total additions 451,380 2,993,297 1,429,635 4,874,312 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 1,072,655 3,237,691 2,157,484 6,467,830 

Total deductions 1,072,655 3,237,691 2,157,484 6.467,830 

Change in net assets (621,275) (244,394) (727,849) (1,593,518) 

Net assets held in trust tor pension 
benefits, beginning of year 19,799,155 38,977,924 24,225,589 83,002,668 

Net assets held in trust for pension 
benefits. end of year $ 19,177,880 $ 38,733,530 $ 23,497,740 $ 81,409,150 
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